
AGENDA: July 27, 2021 
All Documents for public review on file with the district’s secretary located at 806 Palm Canyon Drive, Borrego Springs CA 92004. Any public record provided to a 
majority of the Board of Directors less than 72 hours prior to the meeting, regarding any item on the open session portion of this agenda, is available for public 
inspection during normal business hours at the Office of the Board Secretary, located at 806 Palm Canyon Drive, Borrego Springs CA 92004. 

The Borrego Springs Water District complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act.  Persons with special needs should call Geoff Poole – Board Secretary at 
(760) 767 – 5806 at least 48 hours in advance of the start of this meeting, in order to enable the district to make reasonable arrangements to ensure 
accessibility.

If you challenge any action of the Board of Directors in court, you may be limited to raising only those issues you or someone else raised at the public hearing, or 
in written correspondence delivered to the Board of Directors (c/o the Board Secretary) at, or prior to, the public hearing. 

Borrego Water District Board of Directors 
Regular Meeting  

July 27, 2021 @ 9:00 a.m. 
806 Palm Canyon Drive 

Borrego Springs, CA  92004

COVID-19 UPDATE: The Borrego Water District Board of Directors meeting as scheduled in an 

electronic format. BWD will be providing public access to the Meeting thru electronic means only to 

minimize the spread of the COVID-19 virus, based upon direction from the California Department of 

Public Health, the California Governor’s Office and the County Public Health Office. Anyone who wants 

to listen to or participate in the meeting is encouraged to observe the GO TO MEETING: 

Please join my meeting from your computer, tablet or smartphone. 
https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/181801125 

You can also dial in using your phone. 
United States: +1 (312) 757-3121 
Access Code: 181-801-125 

New to GoToMeeting? Get the app now and be ready when your first meeting starts: 
https://global.gotomeeting.com/install/181801125 

I. OPENING PROCEDURES -
A. Call to Order
B. Pledge of Allegiance
C. Directors’ Roll Call: Directors Baker, Brecht, Duncan, Johnson and President Dice
D. Approval of Agenda
E. Approval of Minutes

1. June 8, 2021 Special Board Meeting
2. June 22, 2021 Regular Board Meeting

F. Comments from the Public & Requests for Future Agenda Items (may be limited to 3 min)
G. Comments from Directors
H. Correspondence Received from the Public- None

II. ITEMS FOR BOARD CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION -
A. Update on Potential 2018 BWD Bond Refunding and Issuance of Additional Capital ($2 M

est.) – J Clabaugh, BWD & Lora Carpenter, Fieldman Rolapp and Assoc.
i. RESOLUTION NO. 2021-07-02 OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF BORREGO

WATER DISTRICT DECLARING ITS INTENT TO ISSUE TAX-EXEMPT
OBLIGATIONS TO BE USED TO REIMBURSE THE BORREGO WATER DISTRICT
FOR EXPENDITURES TO BE MADE PRIOR TO THE ISSUANCE OF SUCH
OBLIGATIONS – J Clabaugh & Lora Carpenter Fieldman Rolapp and Assoc.

ii. Addendum No. 1 Scope of Services Professional Services Agreement for Municipal
Advisor by & between Borrego Water District and Fieldman, Rolapp & Associates, Inc.

iii. Selection of Placement Agent

AGENDA PAGE 1

(3-5)
(6-9)

(10-23)

https://global.gotomeeting.com/install/181801125X


AGENDA: July 27, 2021 
All Documents for public review on file with the district’s secretary located at 806 Palm Canyon Drive, Borrego Springs CA 92004. Any public record provided to a 
majority of the Board of Directors less than 72 hours prior to the meeting, regarding any item on the open session portion of this agenda, is available for public 
inspection during normal business hours at the Office of the Board Secretary, located at 806 Palm Canyon Drive, Borrego Springs CA 92004. 

The Borrego Springs Water District complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act.  Persons with special needs should call Geoff Poole – Board Secretary at 
(760) 767 – 5806 at least 48 hours in advance of the start of this meeting, in order to enable the district to make reasonable arrangements to ensure 
accessibility.

If you challenge any action of the Board of Directors in court, you may be limited to raising only those issues you or someone else raised at the public hearing, or 
in written correspondence delivered to the Board of Directors (c/o the Board Secretary) at, or prior to, the public hearing. 

B. Overview of SDGE Hydrogen Generation Project Planned for Borrego Springs – Shayne
Ferber, SDGE

C. Best, Best and Krieger Rate Increase Request – G Poole
D. Proposition 218 Public Hearing Update and Agenda – G Poole
E. Pilot Program Regarding Provision of Water Supply for Small Development Projects – G

Poole/S Anderson
F. Borrego Springs Subbasin Watermaster Board – VERBAL D Duncan/K Dice

i. Update on Board Activities
ii. Update on Technical Advisory Committee Activities

III. MONTHLY FINANCIAL & OPERATIONS REPORTS
A. Financial Reports: June 2021
B. Water and Wastewater Operations Report: June 2021
C. Water Production/Use Records: June 2021

IV. STAFF REPORTS - VERBAL
A. Administration – Diana Del Bono
B. Engineering- David Dale

a. Report on Oxygenation of Wastewater (ATTACHED)
C. Operations – Alan Asche
D. Wastewater- Roy Martinez
E. General Manager – Geoff Poole

V. CLOSED SESSION:
A. Conference with Legal Counsel - Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to paragraph (3)

of subdivision (d) of Section 54956.9: (Three (3) potential cases)

B. Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation (BWD v. All Persons Who Claim a
Right to Extract Groundwater, et al. (San Diego Superior Court case no. 37-2020-
00005776)

C. Cyber Security – Cyber Security - Cyber Security: Government Code, section 54957(a)

D. Performance Evaluation of General Manager: GM Performance Review – Conference for
Public Employee Performance Evaluation - Title: General Manager Employee Performance
Review- pursuant to subdivision (d) (4) of Government Code Section (Government Code
§54957)

VI. CLOSING PROCEDURE: The next Board Meeting is a Public Hearing on Water and
Wastewater System Charges is scheduled for 5:30 PM on July 27, 2021, to be available
online. See Board Agenda at BorregoWD.org for details. Agenda information available at least
72 hours before the meeting.

AGENDA PAGE 2

(24)
(25-27)

(28-36)

(37-49)

(51-65)
(66-72)

(73-75)

(76-78)



Borrego Water District Board of Directors 

MINUTES 

Special Meeting  

June 8, 2021 @ 9:00 a.m. 

806 Palm Canyon Drive 

Borrego Springs, CA 92004 

I. OPENING PROCEDURES

A. Call to Order:  President Dice called the meeting to order at 9:00 a.m.

B. Pledge of Allegiance:  Those present stood for the Pledge of Allegiance.

C. Roll Call: Directors: Present:  President Dice, Vice-President 

Brecht, Secretary/Treasurer Duncan, 

Baker, Johnson 

Staff: Geoff Poole, General Manager 

Jessica Clabaugh, Finance Officer 

David Dale, District Engineer 

Diana Del Bono, Administration Manager 

Esmeralda Garcia, Administrative Assistant 

Wendy Quinn, Recording Secretary 

Public:  John Peterson 

D. Approval of Agenda:  MSC: Brecht/Johnson approving the Agenda as written. The roll call

vote was unanimous.  

E. Approval of Minutes:  None

F. Comments from the Public and Requests for Future Agenda Items:  Director Johnson left the

meeting at 9:03 a.m.  John Peterson announced that the Sponsor Group had established a Water and Planning 

Standing Committee, which will be discussing the Regional Conveyance System at 3:00 tomorrow via Zoom.  

Those interested in participating should contact Mr. Peterson. 

G. Comments from Directors: President Dice requested a future Agenda item, when should the

Board resume in-person meetings.  Mr. Poole will include it on the next Agenda. 

H. Correspondence Received from the Public:

1. David Garmon.  Geoff Poole reported that Mr. Garmon had sent a letter to Supervisor

Desmond, the Acting Planning and Development Services Director and Jim Bennett regarding issues of 

concern to the Environmental Subcommittee of the Borrego Revitalization Initiative. 

II. A. Fiscal Year 2021-22 Draft Budget Presentation/Workshop: Jessica Clabaugh noted that 

the rate changes had not yet been officially approved, but the budget could be conditionally approved in two 

weeks, effective July 1.  The draft budget included options with and without the rate changes discussed.  

Raftelis recommends a five percent water rate increase in October and a sewer rate increase in 2023.  Proposed 

gross income would be $4.719 million without changes and $4.8 million with.  Operating expenses would 

remain comparable to those in the last two years.  Net income would be $60,800 without changes, $75,635 

with.  The District will be receiving another $133,333 in GWM reimbursement, as well as payment for meter 

reading services and BPA fees.  Operating cash flow is projected at $866,000 without changes, just over $1 

million with. 

B. Withdrawal from Borrego Springs Groundwater Sustainability Agency:  Mr. Poole explained

that with the April 8 approval of the Stipulated Judgment, the GSA is no longer required.  Legal counsel 

drafted a letter to DWR informing them.  MSC: Brecht/Baker approving the draft letter to DWR.  The motion 

passed by unanimous vote of those present. 

C. Resolution No. 2021-06-01 to Release of Easement/Facilities – 18” La Casa Del Zorro

Sewerline: David Dale reported on the new 12-inch sewer line being installed in front of La Casa Del Zorro, 

replacing the current 18-inch line that goes through the La Casa property.  The project is within a couple of 

weeks of completion.  It is now appropriate for the District to vacate its easement through the property and 

hand over the 18-inch line to La Casa for use as a lateral.  MSC: Brecht/Baker adopting Resolution No. 

3



2021-06-01, Resolution of the Board of Directors of Borrego Water District Releasing Two Easements 

Previously Granted by Casa La Casa Del Zorro.  The motion passed by unanimous vote of those present. 

 D. Contract Amendment with Raftelis Financial Consultants for Cost of Service study and related 

activities:  Mr. Poole reported that Raftelis had requested an additional $12,000 for their Cost of Service study 

and related activities.  He was pleased with their work and recommended approval.  MSC: Brecht/Baker 

approving a contract amendment with Raftelis for an additional $12,000 from the Professional Services 

Budget.  The motion passed by unanimous vote of those present. 

 E. Borrego Springs Basin Watermaster:   

  1. Update on Activities.  Director Duncan announced a WMB meeting Thursday at 4:30.  

They will discuss the 2021-22 water year budget and the BPA holders who did not sign the Stipulation.  

  2. Technical Advisory Committee Update from Trey Driscoll, Dudek Engineering & 

BWD Representative.  Mr. Poole invited the Board’s attention to information from Mr. Driscoll in the Board 

package.  The TAC will be updating the sustainable yield and model.   

 

III. BOARD AD-HOC COMMITTEE 

 None 

IV. STAFF REPORTS 

 A. Water and Sewer Revenue Update:  Ms. Clabaugh presented graphs and reported water 

revenue for May of $317,021, an eight percent increase from last year.  Water consumption was just over 

47,000 units.  The three-year average has been consistent.  Esmeralda Garcia is continuing to contact 

delinquent customers and has notified them that late fees will be reinstated in July.  Delinquencies are 

declining (just over 12 percent of the customers).  President Dice requested that copies of the graphs be sent 

to the Board.  Director Johnson rejoined the meeting. 

 B. Solarization of BWD Wells:  Mr. Poole reported that he was continuing discussions with 

SDG&E regarding a new program.  SDG&E would serve as project manager for the local agency, providing 

solar and various financing options.  Director Duncan asked what permits would be required, and Mr. Poole 

agreed to find out. 

 C. Prop 218 Notice Update:  Mr. Poole reported that the notices were being assembled and should 

be in the mail by Friday to all existing customers, including renters.  Director Baker asked that the final notice 

be distributed to the Board before mailing. 

 D. Surplus Property Declaration on June 22nd Agenda:  Mr. Poole noted that BWD owns 12 to 15 

pieces of property, which Ms. Garcia listed and shared with ABF, who is interested in purchasing some of 

them.  The first step in the required process to sell is to declare the property surplus, which will be considered 

at the next meeting. 

 

V. CLOSED SESSION: 

 A. Conference with Legal Counsel – Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to paragraph (3) 

of subdivision (d) of Government Code Section 54956.9: (Six (6) potential cases): 

 B. Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation (BWD v. All Persons Who Claim a Right 

to Extract Groundwater, et al., San Diego Superior Court case no. 37-2020-00005776): 

 C. Property Disposal – Viking Ranch – Conference with Real Property Negotiators (Gov. Code 

Section 54956.8) Property APN: 140-303-0900 & 140-303-1100.  150 acres BWD Negotiator: Geoff Poole 

Negotiating Parties: Geoff Poole, General Manager and US Gypsum: Price and Terms of Payment Property 

Negotiations: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
4



 

 D. Cyber Security: Government Code section 54957(a): 

 The Board adjourned to closed session at 9:50 a.m., and thereafter, the open session reconvened.  There 

was no reportable action. 

  

VI. CLOSING PROCEDURE 

  The next Board Meeting is scheduled for June 22, 2021, at 9:00 a.m. at Borrego Water District, 806 

Palm Canyon Drive, Borrego Springs, CA 92004 – ELECTRONICALLY.  There being no further business, 

the Board adjourned.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5



 
Borrego Water District Board of Directors 

MINUTES 

Regular Meeting 

June 22, 2021 @ 9:00 a.m. 

806 Palm Canyon Drive 

Borrego Springs, CA 92004 

 

I. OPENING PROCEDURES 

 A. Call to Order:  President Dice called the meeting to order at 9:00 a.m. 

 B. Pledge of Allegiance:  Those present stood for the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 C.  Roll Call:   Directors: Present:   President Dice, Vice-President   

        Brecht,  Baker, Johnson 

       Absent: Secretary/Treasurer Duncan   

    Staff:  Geoff Poole, General Manager 

       David Dale, District Engineer 

       Jessica Clabaugh, Finance Officer 

       Diana Del Bono, Administration Manager 

       Alan Asche, Operations Manager 

       Esmeralda Garcia, Administrative Assistant 

       Wendy Quinn, Recording Secretary 

     Public:  John Bowzer, US Gypsum Mike Sweezy, US 

       Andrea Roess, Taussig  Gypsum 

       Steve Liburn   Luis Carrazco, US 

       David Drake    Gypsum 

 D. Approval of Agenda:  MSC: Brecht/Johnson approving the Agenda as written.  The motion 

passed by unanimous vote of those present. 

 E.  Approval of Minutes: 

  1. May 11, 2021 Special Board Meeting. 

  2. May 20 2021 Special Board Meeting – Annual Town Hall. 

  3. May 25, 2021 Regular Board Meeting. 

  MSC: Johnson/Baker approving the Minutes of the Special Board Meetings of May 11 and 

20, 2021 and the Regular Board Meeting of May 25, 2021 as written.  The motion passed by unanimous 

vote of those present. 

 F. Comments from the Public and Requests for Future Agenda Items:  None 

 G. Comments from Directors: None 

 H. Correspondence Received from the Public:  None 

     

II. ITEMS FOR BOARD CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION  

 A. Summary of Annual Fixed Charged Levies for Borrego Water District:  Andrea Roess 

announced that the proposed Resolutions provided for taxes for two CFDs and fixed charges. There weren’t 

many changes since last year, and the delinquency rates are low.  The Assessor’s roll won’t be available until 

July for the fixed charges, so there may be some minor changes in parcel counts. MSC: Brecht/Johnson 

adopting the following Resolutions: 

 RESOLUTION NO. 2021-06-02 RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 

BORREGO WATER DISTRICT RESTATING AND ADOPTING A STATEMENT OF INVESTMENT 

POLICY; 

 RESOLUTION NO. 2021-06-03 RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 

BORREGO WATER DISTRICT, SAN DIEGO COUNTY, CALIFORNIA, LEVYING STANDBY 

CHARGES AND/OR ACREAGE ASSESSMENTS TO DEFRAY THE COST OF OPERATIONS AND 

MAINTENANCE OF THE DISTRICT AND REQUESTING THE LEVY AND COLLECTION OF SAID 

6



STANDBY CHARGES AND/OR ACREAGE ASSESSMENTS ON LAND WITHIN THE DISTRICT FOR 

THE FISCAL YEAR 2021-22; 

 RESOLUTION NO. 2021-06-04 RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 

BORREGO WATER DISTRICT, SAN DIEGO COUNTY, CALIFORNIA, LEVYING STANDBY 

CHARGES AND/OR ACREAGE ASSESSMENTS TO DEFRAY THE COSTS OF OPERATIONS AND 

MAINTENANCE FOR IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 AND REQUESTING THE LEVY AND 

COLLECTION OF SAID STANDBY CHARGES AND/OR ACREAGE ASSESSMENTS ON CERTAIN 

LAND WITHIN IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1 FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2021-22; 

 RESOLUTION NO. 2021-06-05 RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 

BORREGO WATER DISTRICT, SAN DIEGO COUNTY, CALIFORNIA, LEVYING CHARGES 

AND/OR ACREAGE ASSESSMENTS TO DEFRAY THE COST OF PROVIDING PEST CONTROL 

SERVICES BY THE DISTRICT AND REQUESTING LEVY AND COLLECTION OF SAID CHARGES 

AND/OR ACREAGE ASSESSMENTS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2021-22; 

 RESOLUTION NO. 2021-06-06 RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 

BORREGO WATER DISTRICT, SAN DIEGO COUNTY, CALIFORNIA, LEVYING STANDBY 

CHARGES AND/OR ACREAGE ASSESSMENTS TO DEFRAY THE COST OF OPERATING AND 

MAINTAINING THE WATER FACILITIES WITHIN IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 3 OF THE 

DISTRICT AND REQUESTING THE LEVY AND COLLECTION OF SAID STANDBY CHARGES 

AND/OR ACREAGE ASSESSMENTS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2021-22; 

 RESOLUTION NO. 2021-06-07 RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 

BORREGO WATER DISTRICT ACTING AS THE LEGISLATIVE BODY OF COMMUNITY 

FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2017A OF THE BORREGO WATER DISTRICT AUTHORIZING THE 

LEVY OF SPECIAL TAXES WITHIN COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2017-1 FOR THE 

FISCAL YEAR 2021-22; 

 RESOLUTION NO. 2021-06-08 RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 

BORREGO WATER DISTRICT ACTING AS THE LEGISLATIVE BODY OF COMMUNITY 

FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2017B OF THE BORREGO WATER DISTRICT AUTHORIZING THE 

LEVY OF SPECIAL TAXES WITHIN COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2007-1 FOR THE 

FISCAL YEAR 2021-22. 

 The motion passed by unanimous vote of those present. 

 B. Local Agency Formation Commission Special District Alternate Representative Elections:  

Geoff Poole explained that LAFCO is a 13-member commission, and there are alternates for all positions.  It 

is now time to elect a special districts alternate representative.  Mr. Poole had known David Drake for 20 

years and recommended him.  He served on the boards of ACWA/JPIA and the Rincon Del Diablo Municipal 

Water District.  Mr. Drake explained that LAFCO deals with relationships among water districts such as 

boundaries.  MSC: Brecht/Baker approving a vote for David Drake as alternate special districts 

representative to LAFCO.  The motion passed by unanimous vote of those present. 

 C. Viking Ranch Restoration Overview:  Mr. Poole explained that BWD has owned Viking Ranch 

for a number of years.  The fallowing has been completed and some plant life has been reestablished.  Dudek 

did an environmental assessment.  The property is in the streambed of Coyote Creek, and a berm was 

constructed to redirect the flow.  The District continues to monitor it.  US Gypsum is interested in using the 

land for off-site mitigation.  BWD has declared the property surplus and notified the appropriate housing 

authorities.   

 Luis Carrazco of US Gypsum explained that US Gypsum is expanding its Plaster City mine site and 

would like to use the Viking Ranch for mitigation.  They would restore the flood plain hydrology and native 

vegetation, remove the berm and organic debris.  They are working with the State Park and ABF.  Director 

Brecht noted that the reference to the GSP on Board package page 337 should be changed to GMP.  Mr. 

Carrazco noted that there would be a ten-year maintenance and monitoring program, and reports will be sent 

to the Department of Fish and Wildlife.  Director Johnson mentioned DWR’s Managed Aquifer Recharge 

program, and Mike Sweezy of US Gypsum asked her to send him information.   

 D. Resolution No. 2021-06-09 Declaring BWD Properties as Surplus:  Mr. Poole reported that 

staff had identified 10 to 11 BWD properties that are of interest to other parties, mainly ABF, and recommends 
7



declaring them surplus.  The Viking Ranch is included.  President Dice requested a map, which Mr. Poole 

will share with the Board.  MSC: Brecht/Baker adopting Resolution No. 2021-06-09 Declaring BWD 

Properties as Surplus.  The motion passed by unanimous vote of those present. 

 E. Fiscal Year 2021-22 Borrego Water District Budget:  Jessica Clabaugh reported that the only 

change in the budget since the last meeting was an update to the remaining bond funds.  MSC: Brecht/Baker 

approving the Fiscal Year 2021-22 BWD Budget contingent on the recommended rate adoption.  The 

motion passed by unanimous vote of those present.  

 F. Interim Borrego Springs Subbasin Watermaster Board:   

  A. Update on Board Activities.  President Dice asked that the “Interim” be removed from 

this Agenda item.  She will attend the next meeting for Director Duncan.  Director Johnson reported there had 

been a lot of discussion about additional water quality wells.      B. Update on 

Technical Advisory Committee Activities.  Director Baker reported that Andy Malone had presented the TAC 

recommended budget and noted that there was not uniform agreement. 
  
III. AD-HOC COMMITTEE REPORTS 

  A, Public Outreach: Twin Tanks Inspection Video Review:  Director Baker reported that the 

Twin Tanks video inspection had been posted on the Borrego Springs 92004 Facebook page.  Forty-five 

people liked it.  She will send the comments to the Board.  There were 214 views, and no negative comments 

so far. 

 

IV. MONTHLY FINANCIAL & OPERATIONS REPORTS 

 A. Financial Reports: May 2021:  Ms. Clabaugh reported the cash and cash equivalents were 

just under $7 million at the end of May, including the remaining bond funds.  Revenues for May were 

$385,115, and the general operating expenses were $227,458.  There was a small emergency repair, just 

under $800.  There was not much change in the balance sheet.  Director Brecht inquired about the Net 

Operating Income Received and the Actuals for May 2021 of $981,880 (Board package page 358).  Ms. 

Clabaugh will check on it. 

 B. Water and Wastewater Operations Report: May 2021:  The Water and Wastewater Operations 

Report was included in the Board package. 

 C. Water Production/Use Records: May 2021:  The Water Production/Use Records were included 

in the Board package. 

 

V. STAFF REPORTS 

 A. Administration:  Diana Del Bono commended staff for dealing with the 218 notices, bills and 

notices to delinquent customers during her absence.  Esmeralda Garcia is continuing to to work with 

delinquent customers and is making a positive impact.  Ms. Del Bono worked with Alan Asche on the 

Consumer Confidence Report and it is ready to be distributed and posted on the website.  The Risk and 

Resilience Assessment is ready for review.   

 B. Engineering:  David Dale reported there are four projects currently under contract.  The La 

Casa Del Zorro sewer line is about 250 feet away from completion and should be done in the next week or 

two.  The Bending Elbow project is mostly completed, but an additional 600 feet might be added from Weather 

Vane to Borrego Springs Road.  Staff is awaiting final equipment submittals on the wastewater treatment 

plant upgrade.  The project should be completed in April 2022, and additional State funding is expected in 

August or September.  A survey of the Twin Tanks was completed using drones.  Director Baker requested 

pictures. 

 C. Operations:  Mr. Asche reported that the Bending Elbow project was going well.  The extension 

down Weather Vane begins today.  Vegetation and trees have been removed from the Twin Tanks site.  The 

southern tank will be demolished, and the northern tank will be used during construction of the new one.  

Pump testing for Well 5-15 should begin next week.  Pump replacement for Well 11 is in progress, and another 

pump was replaced at Well 18.  Meter replacement at Double O and Frying Pan is continuing.  A new 

employee, Eddie Lopez, has joined the crew. 

 D. Wastewater:  No report. 

 E. General Manager: 8



  i. 218 Notice Distribution.  Mr. Poole reported that the Proposition 218 notices had been 

distributed. 

  ii. State Drought Notice Received.  The State has issued a drought notice, and policies may 

follow. 

  iii. State Extension of Water Shut Off Moratorium.  The water shut off moratorium has been 

extended until September.  Director Brecht recommended that the ratepayers be informed of this, as well as 

the drought notice. 

  iv. Potential BWD 2018 Bond Refinancing.  Mr. Poole reported that there had been recent 

discussions with Fieldman Rolapp regarding possible refinancing of the 2018 bonds.  It could save the District 

$500,000. 

  v. Property Tax Assessments for Delinquent Accounts.  Mr. Poole reported that Ms. Garcia 

had been working with delinquent customers.  The District can place a lien on the property as part of the 

property tax assessment process, but Ms. Garcia will contact the customers first to alert them to this option. 

   

VI. CLOSED SESSION 

 A.  Conference with Legal Counsel – Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to Government 

Code paragraph (3) of subdivision (d) of Section 54956.9 (Three (3) potential cases): 

 B. Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation (BWD v. All Persons Who Claim a right 

to Extract Groundwater, et al. (San Diego Superior Court case no. 37-2020-00005776)): 

 C. Cyber Security – Government Code section 54957(a):  

 The Board adjourned to closed session at 11:00 a.m., and thereafter, the open session reconvened.  

There was no reportable action. 

 

VII. CLOSING PROCEDURE 

 The next Board Meeting is scheduled for 9:00 a.m. July 13, 2021, to be available on line.  See Board 

Agenda at BorregoWD.org for details, Agenda information available at least 72 hours before the meeting.  

President Dice requested a discussion of water conservation and whether to meet in August.  There being no 

further business, the meeting adjourned. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

9



BORREGO WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING JULY 27, 2021 

AGENDA ITEM II.A 

June 16, 2021 

TO:  Board of Directors 

FROM:  Geoffrey Poole, General Manager 

SUBJECT:  Updated Projections on Potential 2018 BWD Bond Refunding and Issuance of 
Additional Capital ($2 M est.) – J Clabaugh, BWD & Lora Carpenter, Fieldman Rolapp and Assoc. 

i. RESOLUTION NO. 2021-07-02 OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF BORREGO
WATER DISTRICT DECLARING ITS INTENT TO ISSUE TAX-EXEMPT
OBLIGATIONS TO BE USED TO REIMBURSE THE BORREGO WATER DISTRICT
FOR EXPENDITURES TO BE MADE PRIOR TO THE ISSUANCE OF SUCH
OBLIGATIONS – J Clabaugh & Lora Carpenter Fieldman Rolapp and Assoc.

ii. Addendum No. 1 Scope of Services Professional Services Agreement for Municipal
Advisor by and between Borrego Water District and Fieldman, Rolapp & Associates,
Inc.

iii. Selection of Placement Agent – Hilltop Financial

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Authorize Staff to proceed with 2018 Bond Refinance through a 
bidding process to coincide with October 2021 refunding/prepayment option. Adopt 
Reimbursement Resolution to allow BWD to finance some recent CIP Expenses, Addendum to 
Fieldman Rolapp Contract (Municipal/Financial Advisor) and selection of Hilltop Financial 
(Placement Agent) to assist with this effort. 

ITEM EXPLANATION: BWD issued Bonds in 2018 at 3.8% that have a prepayment feature 
effective October 2021. Staff was contacted by Lora Carpenter with our Financial Advisors, 
Fieldman Rolapp and Associates (FRA) and informed the current market conditions are such that 
savings can be realized by refinancing the existing debt. In addition, conditions are also favorable 
to consider issuing new debt of approximately $2 M due to the low current rates. A $2M bond 
issue has been included in the recent BWD Rate Model. Lora Carpenter from FRA will provide 
updated pertinent information on this topic at the meeting, including: 

1. Market Conditions Overall: Rates continue at historic lows and have reduced since BWD 2018
Bond Issuance to merit consideration of refunding which is allowed starting on Oct 1 2021

2. Existing Lender Contacted for new Rate Quote: FRA contacted Pac West and received a
quotation for refunding and $2 M in new money for CIP purposes.

3. Potential Exists for Even Lower Rates: Based on "similar transactions", if BWD were to request
bids from other lenders for the Refi and New Money, a drop of somewhere between 105 to 180
BP from original 2108 rate of 3.8 % is possible.

10



4. Decisions for the Board:

A. Proceed with Refi: If YES, accept Pac West quote (80 BP drop) or go out to bid?

B. Proceed with $2M in New Money: If YES, accept Pac West quote or go out to bid?

5. Schedule/Next Steps

A. Reimbursement Resolution

B. Notify Pac West

C. Bid with Other Banks to Refinance 2018 Bonds plus $2M in New Money, if that option is
selected by the Board 

If following Loras presentation the Board desires to continue, approval of a Reimbursement 
Resolution is recommended to allow for BWD to recover costs on recently completed CIP 
projects. In addition, a Contract Addendum is recommended with FRA to act as BWD Advisor, as 
well as selection of a Placement Agent, Hilltop, for the transaction. The Placement Agent acts as 
an intermediary between those seeking to raise money and those who may be interested in 
investing. 

NEXT STEPS: 

1. To be provided by Lora at meeting

FISCAL IMPACT: 

1. To be provided by Lora at meeting

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Reimbursement Resolution
2. FRA Addendum for Advisor Services on Refinancing
3. Proposal from Hilltop for Placement Agent services

2021-07-02

11



RESOLUTION NO. 2021-07-02 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF BORREGO WATER DISTRICT 

DECLARING ITS INTENT TO ISSUE TAX-EXEMPT OBLIGATIONS TO BE USED TO 

REIMBURSE THE BORREGO WATER DISTRICT FOR EXPENDITURES TO BE MADE 

PRIOR TO THE ISSUANCE OF SUCH OBLIGATIONS 

WHEREAS, the Borrego Water District (the “District”) desires to finance construction of water 

and sewer facilities and repairs to the District’s water and sewer system, including, but not 

limited to production well construction and replacement of and repairs to water and sewer 

infrastructure (the “Project”); and 

WHEREAS, the District intends to use proceeds from the sale of obligations in one or more 

series the interest upon which is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes 

(the “Obligations”) to financing the Project; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 1.150-2(d) of the Regulations of the United States Department 

of the Treasury (the “Regulations”), the District may reimburse the amounts advanced by the 

District for the Project if not later than 60 days after payment of the original expenditure of an 

amount advanced by the District, the Board of Directors (the “Board”) adopts an official intent to 

reimburse the expenditure of such advanced amount, and such reimbursement occurs not later 

than 18 months after the later of the date of the original expenditure is paid or the date the 

Project is placed in service, but in no event more than three (3) years after the original 

expenditure is paid; and; and 

WHEREAS, the District expects to incur certain expenditures relating to the Project and to pay 

for such expenditures from certain moneys on hand prior to the execution of the Obligations; and 

WHEREAS, the District reasonably expects to use a portion of the proceeds of the Obligations to 

reimburse the District for expenditures made prior to the date the Obligations are entered into. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, DETERMINED AND ORDERED BY THE 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE BORREGO WATER DISTRICT AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1. Recitals.  The above recitals are true and correct.  

SECTION 2. Declaration of Official Intent.  This Board declares that it is the intent of the 

District that it will be reimbursed the amounts advanced by the District from its Water Fund and 

Sewer Fund 

for the design, construction, acquisition, installation and equipping of the Project from the 

proceeds of the sale of the Obligations. 

SECTION 3. Expected Maximum Principal Amount.  The Obligations shall be issued in one or 

more series in the expected maximum principal amount of $2,500,000.  The Obligations are 

expected to be issued by the District for the purpose of providing tax-exempt financing for the 

Project. 

12



SECTION 4. Other Approvals.  The adoption of this Resolution shall not bind the District to 

proceed with execution and delivery of the Obligations until and unless all other necessary 

actions and approvals are taken or received in accordance with all applicable laws. 

SECTION 5. Effective Date.  This Resolution shall take effect upon adoption. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by said Board on this 27th day of July, 2021 by the following vote: 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

ABSTAIN: 

_____________________________ 

Kathy Dice 

President, Board of Directors 

Borrego Water District 

ATTEST: 

________________________________ 

Dave Duncan 

Secretary, Board of Directors 

Borrego Water District 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA ) 

) 

COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO ) 

I, Dave Duncan, Secretary of the Board of Directors of the Borrego Water District, do hereby 

certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of a resolution passed and adopted by the 

Board of Directors of the Borrego Water District at a meeting of said Board held on the 27th day 

of July, 2021. 

__________________________________ 

Dave Duncan 

Secretary of the Board of Directors of the 

Borrego Water District 

13



ADDENDUM NO. 1 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

FOR MUNICIPAL ADVISOR 

BY AND BETWEEN 

BORREGO WATER DISTRICT 

AND 

FIELDMAN, ROLAPP & ASSOCIATES, INC 

This Addendum to that certain agreement dated June 4, 2020, (the “Agreement”), is made by and between Borrego 

Water District, (the “District”) and Fieldman, Rolapp & Associates, Inc. (the Consultant”) to include the following 

scope of services. 

WHEREAS, the District hereby requests Consultant to provide municipal advisory services in connection 

with the issuance of a private placement to refinance existing loans outstanding and fund additional capital 

improvement projects, (the “Services”). 

Consultant shall provide the following services: 

1. Prepare financial analysis in connection with meeting the required legal covenants and review the District’s
existing debt obligations.

2. Assist in evaluations and structuring a private placement to refinance the District’s outstanding debt
obligations and / or issue funds for capital improvement needs.

3. Review and evaluate the refinancing opportunity for the outstanding 2018 Loan and 2018A&B Notes.

4. Review legal and financial documentation pertaining to the capital funding and refinancing.

5. Attend any related meetings at the District’s request and provide presentations, analysis, and or
recommendations as may be directed by the District.

6. Advising the district in connection with hiring a placement agent, if needed.

7. Assist the District in implementing the selected financing approach.

8. Provide the District any related final loan or bond financing numerical information and assist in the
finalization of any final documentation and related coordination.

9. Other tasks as directed by the District.

14



Fees and Compensation 

The Consultant proposes to be compensated on a fixed fee basis in the amount of $18,000 plus additional expenses 

for the execution of the private placement loan(s) to complete the refinancing and funding of capital improvement 

projects. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties, through their respective authorized representatives, have executed this 

Agreement.  

By: Title: 

Date: 

By: Title: Executive Vice President 

Robert A. Porr 

Date: 

15



© 2021 Hilltop Securities Inc. All rights reserved. Member FINRA/SIPC/NYSE 

Proposal to Provide Placement Agent Services 

Borrego Water District 
July 20, 2021 
 

 

 
 

 

CONTACT:  

Mike Cavanaugh, Managing Director  
mike.cavanaugh@hilltopsecurities.com  

2533 South Coast Highway 101, Suite 250, Cardiff, CA 92007  

Phone: 760.632.6824  

16



 

 

 SPACER! 
 

Mike Cavanaugh 
Managing Director 

2533 S. Coast Hwy 101 
Suite 250 

Cardiff, CA 92007 
(760) 632-6824 

mike.cavanaugh@hilltopsecurities.com  
July 20, 2021 
 
Submitted via email 
Lora Carpenter lcarpenter@Fieldman.com 
 
RE: Placement Agent Services  
 
Hilltop Securities Inc.  (“HilltopSecurities”) is pleased to have this opportunity to submit our qualifications to 
serve as Placement Agent for the Borrego Water District (the “District”) in connection with the proposed 
approximately $4.5 million 2021 Private Placement Refunding and potential new money funding (the “2021 
Private Placement”).  HilltopSecurities is a financial services firm providing investment banking (including 
private placement agent services), investment advisory, securities clearing, securities brokerage, and asset 
management services. When evaluating our qualifications, please consider: 

Commitment to Public Finance in California.  HilltopSecurities traces its California roots back to 1966 with the 
opening of our Beverly Hills office.  HilltopSecurities has been and remains committed to California.  Since 
January 1, 2015, we have participated in hundreds of California transactions totaling more than $34 billion in 
par.  Over the past decade, the firm has been using placements as an alternative to publicly offered debt.   

Private Placements.  Placements often provide a lower cost of borrowing than a traditional public offering.  
Since 2017, our combined California experience includes 128 financings totaling $1,350 million.  Our four-person 
office in Cardiff by the Sea is responsible for 30 or more placements a year which demonstrates our success and 
proficiency for California issuers.  Additionally, we have been invited speakers on the topic of private placements 
at both the Bond Buyer and the Association of Government Finance and Leasing Annual Conferences.  

Committed Team.   We bring the District an experienced team, providing the highest level of service. We will 
make ourselves available to the District, Fieldman Rolapp, Bond Counsel and other members of the team to 
ensure the District’s financing needs are met.   

I will be involved with the transaction from start to finish and will be responsible for all work generated by 
HilltopSecurities. To most effectively meet your needs, I commit our experience, personnel and reputation.   

Sincerely yours, 
 
 
 
 
Mike Cavanaugh 
Managing Director 
HilltopSecurities 
 

 

17

mailto:lcarpenter@Fieldman.com


  

 

 P a g e  | 1 

© 2021 Hilltop Securities Inc. All rights reserved. Member FINRA/SIPC/NYSE 

II. Questions / Firm Information 

1. Describe your firm’s California placement agent experience. Please indicate the number of placements your firm has 
completed in the past 3 years. Please do not include financings in which your firm served as underwriter. 

HilltopSecurities’ Private Placement Experience. HilltopSecurities is an active participant in the private 
placement market, having completed 128 private placements in California totaling $1,350 million since 
January 1, 2017.  This includes 27 for Water and Sewer totaling over $137 million.  The four-person Cardiff-
by-the-Sea banking team assigned to the District has completed every transaction on this list, including 25 
already this year. In addition, we have summarized our experience with water and sewer placements and 
Special Districts. 

Year # Par # Par # Par
2017 36 366,437,460         8 45,969,374        2 4,889,305             
2018 22 349,426,660         3 28,000,274        3 25,305,563           
2019 25 179,984,976         2 16,233,000        4 10,567,500           
2020 38 412,814,973         7 27,141,809        9 36,605,963           
2021 7 42,145,655           7 19,935,133        5 28,132,985           

Totals 128    1,350,809,724     27 137,279,590     23 105,501,316         

Water and Sewer Special DistrictPlacement Agent

 

HilltopSecurities is unique in our ability to tranform long-term bank relationships into lower borrowing costs 
formunicipal entities, such as the District.  We will connect the District with the bank that is able to help it 
achieve its financing goals.  HilltopSecurities has an extensive list of banking contacts in excess of 150 names.  
This list, our personal relationships with many of the banks, and the ability to provide solutions for the 
District along with other California entities is the basis for our success. 

Our recent private placement experience includes: Western Municipal Water Distrct, Yolo County Flood 
Control and Water Conservation District, Saucelito Irrigation District, Terra Bella Irrigation District, 
Lindmore Irrigation District and Lindsay-Strathmore Irrigation District.  We worked with Fieldman Rolapp 
and Stradliing Yocca Carlson Rauth on most of these transactions.  Most finanacings were won through a 
competitive request for proposal process.  HilltopSecurities was able to find banks that provided low bids for 
those issuers and we would expect similar results for the District.  Having worked on those prior deals has 
provided HilltopSecurities current insight into the Water District  space which will be valuable in finding a 
purchaser that provides the lowest interest rate.  HilltopSecurities is currently engaged with multiple issuers 
which keeps us informed of the current needs and wants of the banks.    

2. Please note/highlight the 3 placements you believe are most comparable to the District's proposed transaction. 

HilltopSecurities Private Placement Experience. As noted above, HilltopSecurities is very active with private 
placements having completed 108 private placements in California totaling $1,236 million since January 1, 
2017.  Below are recent examples: 

A comparable is Saucelito Irrigation District (SID) with a water pledge that was 
completed in 2021. Mike Cavanaugh was hired via a request for proposal to provide 
placement agent services for their $5,221,027 Installment Sale Agreement.  SID 
refunded publicly offered deals via a placement. The refunding reduced debt service 

by $3,331,948, primarily accomplished by reducing the final maturity from 2041 to 2033. HilltopSecurities 

18



  

 

 P a g e  | 2 

© 2021 Hilltop Securities Inc. All rights reserved. Member FINRA/SIPC/NYSE 

reached out to 21 banks and received 4 bids with the lowest rate of 2.50% and a range up to 2.68%. The 
refunding closed on January 23, 2021. 

Lindmore Irrigation District is another comparable being a water system pledge and a special 
district which was completed earlier this year.  Lindmore was able to obtain a rate of 1.23%, 
which was over 100bps lower than our initial estimated rate.  The final maurity on this loan was 
only 10 years.  The lower rate increase savings for the district to over $1,800,000 on the 

$4,285,000 of outstanding bonds.  The present value benefit to the district was $700,000 or 16% of the 
refunded bonds.   

 

3. Please provide a proposed project team and brief resumes. Please provide experience over the last 3 years with: 

a. California Special District debt placements 

b. Note each individual’s 3 placements you believe are most comparable to the District’s proposed transaction  

Mike Cavanaugh, Managing Director, will serve as the primary 
contact and lead banker responsible for coordination of all 
HilltopSecurities efforts on behalf of the District.  Mike will be the 
day-to-day contact and will design structures and strategies to best 
achieve the objectives of the District.  He will be personally calling 
and in communication with all banks. He will be able to provide 
Fieldman Rolapp and the District with constant updates on each 
bank upon request. As noted below, Mike has a significant amount 
of Special District experience including Saucelito Irrigation District, 
Terra Bella Irrigation District, Lindmore Irrigation District, Lindsay Strathmore Irrigation District, Tulare 
Local Health Care District, the Capitol Area Development Authority, Cambria Community Services District, 
Rincon Del Diablo Water District, Desert Recreation District, Southgate Rec & Park District, Burbank-
Paradise Fire Protection District, Placer Hills Fire Protection District, Weaverville Community Services 
District, Western Municipal Water District and West Valley Mosquito and Vector Control District.  

Mr. Cavanaugh started his career in Public Finance in 1991 as a financial analyst and has over ten years of 
senior management banking experience. Mr. Cavanaugh has completed over 55 placements since 2017 for 
approximately $450 million of these 18 were water and sewer deals for a total of over $119 million. Mr. 
Cavanaugh holds a Bachelor of Science Degree in Business Administration from the University of Southern 
California. He is a Registered Representative with the NASD (Series 7).  Mr. Cavanaugh is an active member of 
the Committee on Assessments, Special Taxes and Other Financing Facilities (CASTOFF), California Society of 
Municipal Finance Officers (Statewide and the San Diego Chapter), Independent Cities Association.  He was 
an invited speaker on the topic of private placements at the 2016 and 2017 Bond Buyer Conference and the 
2017 Association of Government Finance and Leasing.   

His placement agent experience since 2017 totals 64 transactions totaling $503,371,000.  This experience 
includes Terra Bella, Saucelito, Lindmore ID, Lindsay-Strathmore ID, Cambria Community Services District, 
Rincon Del Diablo Municipal Water District, Weaverville Community Services District, Needles Public Utility 
Authority and the Colton Public Utility Authority. In addition, Mr. Cavanaugh has experience in this sector 
with the Cities of Riverbank, Yuba City, California City, Albany, Patterson, Woodland, Torrance, King City, 
Davis, and Escalon.   

Mike Cavanaugh
Managing Director

Public Finance Banking

2533 S. Coast Hwy 101, Suite 250
Cardiff by the Sea, California  92007

 760.632.6824 Office 619.200.4747 Mobile 
Fax 760.632.8621

Mike.Cavanaugh@hilltopsecurities.com

19



  

 

 P a g e  | 3 

© 2021 Hilltop Securities Inc. All rights reserved. Member FINRA/SIPC/NYSE 

Todd Smith, Managing Director, will assist Mr. Cavanaugh with 
the engagement and be available as a contingent and senior level 
banker, if necessary.  Unless needed, his involvement will be 
without client contact.  Mr. Smith has been involved in the 
underwriting of over $3.5 billion in public finance transactions 
since 1996, including revenue bonds, COPs, lease revenue bonds, 
land secured transactions, tax allocation bonds, affordable 
housing projects, enterprise revenue bonds, and general 
obligation bonds.  In 2008 and 2009, Mr. Smith was the lead 
banker on the Far West Region Bond Buyer Deal of the Year for the Yuba County Levee Improvement in 2008.   
Mr. Smith holds a Bachelor of Arts Degree from California State University Fullerton in Economics.  Mr. Smith 
holds Series 7 (General Securities) and Series 63 (Uniform Securities Agent State Law) licenses. 

Ryan Cunningham, Director, served as a public finance banker for 
Southwest Securities from 2006-2012. His experience includes 
cities, counties, school districts, water districts, utility districts, 
economic development corporations, and tax increment financing.  
He has also been a consultant for the United Nations in the areas 
of sustainable/environmental finance and worked as a credit 
analyst for infrastructure project finance transactions.  Mr. 
Cunningham holds a BS from Saint Vincent College in Political 
Science, an MPA with a concentration in public finance and MA in 

Latin American Studies from Indiana University, and a certificate in Climate and Renewable Energy Finance 
from the Frankfurt (Germany) School of Banking & Management.  He holds SIE, Series 52, and Series 63 
licenses. 

4. Please describe your proposed process for placing the loan with a private placement provider. Please provide a detailed scope of 
services and timeline for your services as placement agent. 

HilltopSecurities will be able to guide you through the process because of our unique and valuable experience 
with other California Special Districts (specifically water districts) regarding their needs. This experience, with 
similar credits, provides HilltopSecurities with insight into the banks’ interest in your bonds.  This is valuable 
because we understand the credit, from both a Placement Agent and lender perspective.  Our unique 
experience will translate into the lowest cost of borrowing for the District.   

As Placement Agent, HilltopSecurities shall provide the District advice with respect to the structure, timing, 
terms and other matters concerning the financing.  HilltopSecurities has been engaged in a financing that closed 
in less than 30 days; however, the normal process can take up to 90 days. We understand the refunding needs 
to close prior to the October 1, 2021 call date and we can meet that deadline.  All banks have different 
timelines and processes, so the timeline of services discussed is presented as an estimate. HilltopSecurities’ 
experience in placements with a vast array of banks cannot, and should not, be overlooked.  Investors are fickle, 
banks have backed out of deals after initial indications of interest, require onerous conditions or have removed 
themselves from the industry altogether. The District will need a placement agent that has several bank 
contacts, not just a few. This will ease concerns that investors are in short supply or the banks are not able to 
close a transaction.  

Mike Cavanaugh will have direct communication with all banks.  Since 2010, all communication with the banks 
has been done directly via Mike Cavanaugh and Todd Smith, both in the Cardiff by the Sea, CA office.  These 
years of direct communication has formed relationships that are without comparison and will be valuable to 

Todd Smith
Managing Director

Public Finance Banking 

2533 S. Coast Hwy 101, Suite 250
Cardiff by the Sea, California  92007

760.632.1347 
Fax 760.632.8621

Todd.Smith@hilltopsecurities.com

20



  

 

 P a g e  | 4 

© 2021 Hilltop Securities Inc. All rights reserved. Member FINRA/SIPC/NYSE 

the District to obtain the lowest cost of borrowing. HilltopSecurities’ scope of services for a private placement 
includes but is not limited to the following:  

• HilltopSecurities will conduct due diligence discussions with the District’s consultants in the preparation of 
analyses and/or reports for the proposed 2021 Private Placement. (First week of engagement) 

• HilltopSecurities will consult with Counsel and Fieldman Rolapp, in developing the necessary financing 
documents under which the 2021 Private Placement will be placed and delivered. (First week of 
engagement) 

• Assist District Staff and Fieldman Rolapp by performing analyses, providing bond structuring 
recommendations and performing other services as needed. (First week through Closing) 

• HilltopSecurities will work with Fieldman Rolapp to complete formal bid documents and distribute them to 
potential investors.  HilltopSecurities has a large list of investors that is continuously growing.  Currently, 
we would anticipate distribution to over twenty different firms and banks.  The bid document will contain 
the credit information necessary for investment evaluation purposes for investors looking to respond to 
the bid request (within two weeks of engagement or sooner if needed for closing). 

• HilltopSecurities recommends potential investors be allowed up to two weeks to review the credit and 
provide a bid (weeks 1-3 after engagement).  During this time, HilltopSecurities will speak to the investors 
several times a week to assist with their needs, questions and concerns and will keep a log of all 
communication with the investors for review by Fieldman Rolapp, District Staff and others as needed.  
While HilltopSecurities will attempt to handle all investor questions, we will most likely need the support 
of District staff, Fieldman Rolapp and legal counsel.  This process will allow for the highest number of bids 
received.  When time has been of essence, HilltopSecurities has shortened this step of the process to a 
week or less.  However, we have found that considerably fewer banks will engage in the process.   

• HilltopSecurities will obtain and present a bid summary to the District and Fieldman Rolapp for their 
review and selection.  (2-3 weeks after engagement) 

• HilltopSecurities will re-negotiate bids with select bidders 
upon the District’s request, if the District is not satisfied 
with the original bid.  (2-3 weeks + 1 day after 
engagement)  

• HilltopSecurities will advise the District and Fieldman 
Rolapp on the results of the bids received from banks and investors for purchase of the Bonds.  
HilltopSecurities will certify the yields assigned to the lease are at or below the market yields for similar 
types of bonds with similar credit characteristics and that, a competitive bidding process has been 
implemented.  If the issuer desires, HilltopSecurities will help negotiate terms and conditions or at the very 
least be a facilitator in the endeavor (2-3 weeks + 1 day after engagement).  There will likely be 
negotiations with multiple banks after bids are received by the District in order to find the right bank to 
meet the District’s goals.  

• HilltopSecurities will work as a liaison between the financing team and the bank to get formal credit 
approval.  Generally, the original “bid” is a rate indication and is “subject to formal bank approval.”  Formal 
approval generally takes two weeks after acceptance of their indicative bid.  (4-5 weeks after engagement)  

• Assist District Staff and Fieldman Rolapp in the final sizing of the loan by preparing various debt service 
schedules and other forms of numerical and market analysis, as needed.  To support, give advice and 
recommendations, as needed.  This happens when the bank/purchaser provides a firm bid and/or rate 
lock.  (This timeframe could be anywhere from 2 weeks to 5 weeks after engagement) 

• Following the successful sale, provide numerical documentation and schedules as requested. 
• Assist the District, Bond Counsel, Fieldman Rolapp, and Purchaser to get the financing closed.  (5-7 weeks 

after engagement) 

21



  

 

 P a g e  | 5 

© 2021 Hilltop Securities Inc. All rights reserved. Member FINRA/SIPC/NYSE 

• Report results, per MSRB recommendation 
• Provide follow-up and ongoing support to the transaction and District, as needed, prior and after the 

closing. 

These are just some of the services provided in a standard transaction, but because of our experience we have 
many additional items that could be added to the list. These are derived through our due diligence and the 
needs of the specific issuer.  We examine each transaction independently to find opportunities to obtain the 
lowest cost of borrowing.   

5. Please discuss your initial recommendations on how to handle interest rate risk between submittal of bids and rate lock. 

HilltopSecurities has closed 7 private placements so far in 2021 with a generally standardized approach.  The 
size, (perceived) rating and term of the loan are all important metrics, which will have an impact on the 
ultimate bank rate. HilltopSecurities has experience with all different credit types but the work completed on 
the five enterprise-based districts this year gives HilltopSecurities an advantage over our competitors. The 
District should expect to receive up to 6 bids, hopefully more. The following 20 banks will be targeted for the 
District.  

Banner Bank City National Key Bank River City Bank
BB&T/Truist Capital One Five Start Bank Signature Bank
BCI Capital Chase/JP Morgan Mechanics Bank Sterling Bank
BBVA F&M Bank Pacific Western Bank UMPQUA
CA Bank and Trust First Foundation Bank Pinnacle Public Finance Western Alliance  

When bidding, many of these banks will provide a rate that is locked through closing or up to 60 days after 
their term sheet is submitted.  A few will not lock until they have formal approval or about 2-3 weeks after 
being engaged.  The District may need to decide whether a “bird in the hand” bid is worth interest rate risk 
for 2-3 weeks.  HilltopSecurities will provide sensitivity analysis and other advice upon request, but we 
believe the rate should not be the only factor.  A few banks will not charge for bank counsel, while most 
others will. The optional redemption provisions will differ, and documentation may be different amongst the 
bidders.  HilltopSecurities will summarizes all bids (Terra Bella ID shown below) received and provide a chart 
reflecting debt service costs including the “all in true interest cost.” 

Bank Bid Rate Lock Call Feature Bank Counsel Legal Fees Bank Loan Fees (other than legal) DSRF Reporting Requirements Other

BBVA 2.190%
60 day rate lock upon Credit 

Approval add 3bps Noncallable first 4 years; the callable at par Kutak  $   10,000 
 The borrower will  be responsible 

for any fees or expenses   None 

 CAFR to be provided within 210 days of 
the close of each fiscal year. Operating 

budget due within 30 days of fiscal year 
end. Additional info as needed 

Parity Debt test of 1.25X; Rate and 
Coverage Covenant of 1.25x

Pinnacle 2.220% Rate lock through 2/27/2020
No prepayment prior to 8/2/2024. Callable any 

date after that at 100  Chapman and Cutler LLP  $   10,000 
 The borrower will  be responsible 

for any fees or expenses   None 
 CAFR to be provided within 210 days of 
the close of each fiscal year.Additional 
info as needed (subject to negoriation) 

 Rate covenant 1.20x and Additional 
Bonds Test of 1.20x 

Opus 2.220%
Rate lock through 2/27/2020-

via 2nd email

105%, 105,104,104,103,103,102,102,101 or 
105 after 5 years- under either 10% can be 

called any year without premium
Nixon Peabody LLP  $   10,000  $1,000 fee to send COI wires  None 

 Rate covenant and Additional Bonds 
in IPA are good 

Truist 2.030% 03/03/20 8/1/24 100 Squire Sanders  $     7,500 
 CAFR to be provided within 270 days of 

the close of each fiscal year 
Parity Debt test of 1.25X; Rate and 

Coverage Covenant of 1.25x

Umpqua 2.790%
rates includes a despost 

relationhship of $450,000 103 103 102 102 101 101 101 Nixon Peabody LLP  $   10,000 
Parity Debt test of 1.25X; Rate and 

Coverage Covenant of 1.25x

 

In addition to pricing, the District should be aware of other provisions banks are trying to insert into their 
bids, which can be very detrimental to issuers.  Working with Fieldman Rolapp, HilltopSecurities would make 
sure bidders address the following concerns:  

22



  

 

 P a g e  | 6 

© 2021 Hilltop Securities Inc. All rights reserved. Member FINRA/SIPC/NYSE 

 Pass along costs of doing business.  This covers a broad range of issues, but if banks can pass along 
costs of doing business to issuer, the bank will pass along these costs to the issuer in terms of 
adjusting interest rates higher later.  

 Material Adverse Change.  This is another potential liability for the District to avoid.  Banks are trying 
to add this non-defined term into their documents, which will allow the bank to declare an event of 
default or pass along costs of doing business if such an event occurs.  A “Material Adverse Change” is 
generally subject to the Bank’s interpretation, so that the Bank can unilaterally declare this event 
with significant ramifications to the District.   

 Taxability.  If tax exemption is abolished, banks want to be able to pass along those costs to the 
borrower.  This again is an example of a potential future problem, which needs to be avoided or 
mitigated.   

Having HilltopSecurities evaluating bids and providing insight are just a few of the reasons why choosing 
HilltopSecurities as your placement agent can save money and protect the District’s interests.  Other 
placement agents may charge less but with the experience we bring to the table, the District cannot afford to 
take the chance with a novice placement agent.   

III. Fees 

Please provide a detailed summary of your proposed fees and a detailed breakdown of expenses for placement agent services, 
including all assumptions used in deriving this fee structure 
 
HilltopSecurities proposes a Placement Agent fee of $18,000. This fee is inclusive of expenses, but the District 
will be responsible for CDIAC and other third-party expenses, if any.  HilltopSecurities’ fee is entirely 
contingent on the successful completion of a financing.  If the issue fails to close, we will not be reimbursed 
for any expenses.  As stated above, we understand the refunding needs to close prior to the October 1, 2021 
call date and we can meet that deadline. 
 

23



BORREGO WATER DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
JUNE 22, 2021 

AGENDA ITEM II. B 

June 16, 2021 

TO: Board of Directors 

FROM: Geoffrey Poole, General Manager 

SUBJECT:  Overview of SDGE Hydrogen Generating Project in Borrego Springs 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive Overview and ask any questions of SDGE  

ITEM EXPLANATION:  SDGE has requested BWD extend its pipeline in Borrego Springs Road 
approximately 1 mile to the existing solar farm. The water is planned to be used for a hydrogen 
generating project using surplus power from the solar farm. SDGE is also interested in purchasing 
water from BWD in a quantity of up to 1 acre foot of annual usage, and would likely be a participant 
in the Pilot Project to provide water for new development later on this Agenda. 

NEXT STEPS: 
1. Continue with Pipeline Construction
2. Consider Application from SDGE for Pilot Program if approved by the Board.

FISCAL IMPACT 
1. None. SDGE to cover all costs for pipeline construction as well as meter installation and water

supply if acquired from BWD

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. None

24



BORREGO WATER DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
JUNE 22, 2021 

AGENDA ITEM II. C 

June 16, 2021 

TO: Board of Directors 

FROM: Geoffrey Poole, General Manager 

SUBJECT:  Best, Best and Krieger Rate Increase Request – G Poole 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Rate Increase  

ITEM EXPLANATION:  BWD has received a request for rate increase from BBK to reflect Consumer 
Price Index increases on 3% during the past 12 months. The request is attached. Staff is very 
satisfied with BBK services and recommends approval. 

NEXT STEPS: 
1. Sign attached acknowledgement

FISCAL IMPACT 
+ 3% rate increase = $2,000/yr estimated annual cost, based on Legal General Legal Budget of 
$60,000 and up to $7,500 on the GroundWater Legal budget of $250,000 assuming the full 
amount is spent on both, which is unlikely.  

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. BBK Correspondence

25



Indian Wells 
(760) 568-2611

Irvine
(949) 263-2600

Los Angeles
(213) 617-8100

Ontario
(909) 989-8584

Sacramento
(916) 325-4000

San Diego
(619) 525-1300

Walnut Creek
(925) 977-3300

Washington, DC
(202) 785-0600

3750 University Avenue, Suite 125, P.O. Box 1028, Riverside, CA 92502 
Phone: (951) 686-1450  |  Fax: (951) 686-3083  |  www.bbklaw.com 

Alex Aldaco 
(619) 525-1359
alex.aldaco@bbklaw.com

July 21, 2021 

Borrego Water District 
Attn: Geoff Poole, General Manager 
806 Palm Canyon Drive 
Borrego Springs, CA 92004 

Re:  Annual Notice of Automatic Increase in Legal Services Rates 

Dear Valued Best Best & Krieger LLP Client, 

In accordance with our current agreement, the hourly rates are to adjust on July 1st of each 
year. Per your email on July 21, 2021 the hourly rates will be: 

Basic Services Current Rate: New Rate 

Partner / Of Counsel $ 260.00 $ 276.00 

Associate/ Associate 2 $ 230.00 $ 244.00 

Paralegal / Research Analyst / 
Clerk / Admin. Assistant $ 150.00 $ 159.00 

Special Services Current Rate: New Rate 

Partner / Of Counsel $ 295.00 $ 313.00 

Associate / Associate 2 $ 255.00 $ 270.00 

Paralegal / Research Analyst / 
Clerk / Admin. Assistant 

$ 160.00 $ 170.00 

If this is acceptable to you, please sign and date as indicated below and return to us. Best 
Best & Krieger sincerely appreciates your continuing loyalty and the choice of our firm for your 
legal services.  If you have any questions about this or any of our billing policies, please contact 
your BB&K attorney, Steve Anderson. 

26



July 21, 2021 
Page 2 

Sincerely, 

Alex Aldaco 
Client Services Coordinator  
for BEST BEST & KRIEGER LLP 

AGREED AND ACCEPTED: 

Dated:__________________ By:_____________________________ 
Geoff Poole, General Manager 

27



BORREGO WATER DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
JULY 27, 2021 

AGENDA ITEM II. D 

July 22, 2021 

TO: Board of Directors 

FROM: Geoffrey Poole, General Manager 

SUBJECT: Proposition 218 Public Hearing Update and Agenda – G Poole 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  
Receive Update on Public Hearing 

ITEM EXPLANATION 
Attached is the agenda for the upcoming Pubic Hearing on the proposed water and wastewater 
service charge adjustments to be held on July 27th at 5:30 PM. 

NEXT STEPS 

Conduct Pubic Hearing at 5:30 PM and consider Rate Resolution 

FISCAL IMPACT 

1. Proposed rates are needed to fund BWD water and sewer operations/financial obligations.

ATTACHMENTS 

1. Agenda for Public Hearing
2. Rate Resolution

28



Borrego Water District Board of Directors 
Special Board Meeting and Pubic Hearing 

Proposition 218: Water and Wastewater System Charges 
July 27, 2021 @ 5:30 p.m. 
806 Palm Canyon Drive 

Borrego Springs, CA  92004 
COVID-19 UPDATE: The Borrego Water District Board of Directors meeting as scheduled in an electronic format. 
BWD will be providing public access to the Meeting thru electronic means only to minimize the spread of the COVID-
19 virus, based upon direction from the California Department of Public Health, the California Governor’s Office and 
the County Public Health Office. Anyone who wants to listen to or participate in the meeting is encouraged to 

observe the GO TO MEETING at:  
Borrego Water District Prop 218 Public Meeting  
Tue, Jul 27, 2021 5:30 PM - 8:30 PM (PDT) 

Please join my meeting from your computer, tablet or smartphone. 
https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/822430685 

You can also dial in using your phone. 
United States: +1 (646) 749-3122 
Access Code: 822-430-685 

New to GoToMeeting? Get the app now and be ready when your first meeting starts: 
https://global.gotomeeting.com/install/822430685. 

I. OPENING PROCEDURES -
B. Call to Order
C. Pledge of Allegiance
D. Directors’ Roll Call: Directors Baker, Brecht, Duncan, Johnson and President Dice
E. Approval of Agenda
F. Approval of Minutes - None
G. Comments from the Public & Requests for Future Agenda Items (may be limited to 3 min)
H. Comments from Directors
I. Correspondence Received from the Public- None

II. ITEMS FOR BOARD CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION –
A. Welcome and Explanation of Proceedings – Kathy Dice, BWD Board President
B. 218 Overview:  Lutfi Kharuf, Best/Best and Krieger
C. Rate Study Methodology and Recommended Rates/Charges - Kevin Kostiuk, Raftelis 

Financial Consultants
D. Open Public Comment Section -Kathy Dice, BWD

i. Receive Public Comment and Responses - Dice/Poole, BWD
E. Close Public Hearing – Dice, BWD
F. Board Discussion and Possible Action

i. Approval of Resolution 2021-07-03 Adopting Water and Wastewater System Charges

III. CLOSING PROCEDURE: The next Board Meeting is scheduled for 9:00 AM August 24, 2021, 
to be available online. See Board Agenda at BorregoWD.org for details, Agenda information 
available at least 72 hours before the meeting.

29

https://global.gotomeeting.com/install/822430685


RESOLUTION NO. 2021-07-03 
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF BORREGO WATER 

ADOPTING WATER AND WASTEWATER SERVICE 
CHARGES  

WHEREAS, the Borrego Water District (the “District”) is organized and operates 
pursuant to the California Water District Law, Division 13 commencing with Section 34000 
of the California Water Code; and 

WHEREAS, the District is authorized to fix and collect charges for the provision of 
water service pursuant to Water Code Section 35470, and for wastewater service 
pursuant to Water Code Section 35501; and 

WHEREAS, in order to determine whether the District’s current rate structure for 
water and wastewater charges requires an update, the District retained an independent 
rate consultant to provide a cost of service analysis and rate study (“Study”), the results 
of which have been presented to the District Board of Directors; and  

WHEREAS, according to the Study, proposed rate increases to the water and 
sewer service charges are required in order to provide sufficient revenue to the District, 
while continuing to proportionately allocate the cost of providing water and sewer service 
among the District’s customer classes; and   

WHEREAS, the rate structure for the District’s water service charges is comprised 
of two components: (1) a Monthly Fixed Charge, based on the size of the meter serving 
a parcel of property; and (2) a Water Commodity Charge, which is determined on the 
basis of the amount of water served to a parcel of property in hundreds of cubic feet 
(“HCF”), and which includes tiers that pass on the increased cost of delivering water at 
higher volumes to higher water users; and   

WHEREAS, the District’s wastewater charges are imposed on customers within 
the District’s service areas that receive sewer collection and treatment service from the 
District, and is composed of three separate service areas (“SAs”) – SA1, SA2, and A 5; 
and  

WHEREAS, all wastewater customers pay a monthly fixed charge per equivalent 
dwelling unit (“EDU”) that varies depending on the SA, based on the unique costs of 
service therein; and  

WHEREAS, the District charges separate wastewater charges on wastewater 
customers within SA2, depending on whether such customers are SA2 EDU “Holders” 
and SA2 EDU “Users,” with Holders comprising customers that have previously bought 
into the wastewater system but have not yet connected to the system; and  

WHEREAS, the obligation to pay the SA2 EDU Holder charges stems from their 
agreement with the District to pay certain operating and maintenance costs of the 
wastewater system; and  

30



2 

WHEREAS, SA2 EDU Users pay the sum of both the Holder and User charges, 
as described in more detail in Exhibit “A” hereto, and Borrego Springs Resort (“BSR”) in 
SA5 also pays a portion of its charges as a usage charge per unit of water delivered; and 

WHEREAS, the District’s rates for water and wastewater service charges are 
calculated to recover the costs of the District in providing water and wastewater services 
and to proportionately allocate those costs among the customers; and 

WHEREAS, the revenues derived from the water and wastewater service charges 
will not exceed the funds required to provide water and wastewater services, respectively, 
and shall be used exclusively for providing water and wastewater service, respectively; 
and 

WHEREAS, the water and wastewater service charges will not exceed the 
proportional cost of the services attributable to each parcel upon which they are imposed; 
and 

WHEREAS, the water and wastewater service charges will not be imposed on a 
parcel unless the water and wastewater services are actually used by, or immediately 
available to, the owner of the parcel; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to California Constitution Article XIII D, Section 6 (“Article 
XIII D”), the District provided written notice (the “Notice”) by mail of: (1) the proposed 
increases to the water and wastewater service charges to the record owner of each parcel 
upon which the water and wastewater service charges are proposed for imposition and 
any tenant directly liable for payment of the water and wastewater service charges; (2) 
the amount of the water and wastewater service charges proposed to be imposed on 
each parcel; (3) the basis upon which the water and wastewater service charges were 
calculated; (4) the reason for the water and wastewater service charges; and (5) the date, 
time, and location of a virtual public hearing (the “Hearing”), held in accordance with the 
Governor’s Executive Order No. N-29-20, on the proposed water and wastewater service 
charges; and 

WHEREAS, the District provided such Notice not less than forty-five days prior to 
the Hearing on the proposed rates and charges; and 

WHEREAS, the Hearing was held on this day, July 27, 2021, and  

WHEREAS, at the Hearing, the Board of Directors heard all oral testimony, and 
considered all written materials, and written protests concerning the establishment and 
imposition of the proposed rate increases for the water and wastewater service charges, 
and at the close of the Hearing, the District did not receive written protests against the 
establishment and imposition of the proposed rate increases for the water or wastewater 
service charges from a majority of the affected property owners and tenants directly liable 
for the payment of the water or wastewater service charges; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors has determined to adopt the proposed rates for 

31



3 

the water and wastewater service charges at the maximum rates and on the effective 
dates set forth in Exhibit “A” hereto; and   

WHEREAS, the rates for the water service charges established by this Resolution 
and set forth in Exhibit “A” are for the purpose of: (A) meeting operational expenses, 
including employee wage rates and fringe benefits; (B) purchasing or leasing supplies, 
equipment, or materials; (C) meeting financial reserve needs and requirements; and (D) 
obtaining funds for capital projects necessary to maintain service within existing service 
areas, as set forth in this Resolution, and, therefore, the establishment of such charges 
is not subject to the California Environmental Quality Act. 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Board of Directors of the Borrego Water 
District as follows: 

Section 1.  The matters set forth in the recitals to this Resolution are true and 
correct statements and by this reference are incorporated herein and made findings and 
determinations of the Board of Directors. 

Section 2.  The Board of Directors hereby adopts the water and wastewater service 
charges in the amounts and at the rates set forth in Exhibit “A” hereto. The rates and 
charges in Exhibit “A” shall be effective for all services provided on and after October 1, 
2021. The General Manager, or his designee, is hereby authorized and directed to take 
all actions necessary to effectuate the rates for water and wastewater service, to collect 
the charges for such service, and other authorizations set forth herein.   

Section 3.  All resolutions or administrative actions by the Board of Directors, or 
parts thereof that are inconsistent with any provision of this Resolution are hereby 
superseded only by this Resolution to the extent of such inconsistency. 

Section 4.  If any section, subsection, clause, sentence, or phrase in this 
Resolution is for any reason held invalid, the validity of the remainder of this Resolution 
shall not be affected thereby. The Board of Directors hereby declares it would have 
passed this Resolution and each section, sentence, clause, or phrase thereof, 
irrespective of the fact that all or more sections, subsections, clauses, sentences, or 
phrases are held invalid. 

32



4 

Section 5. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Borrego 
Water District held on the 27th day of July 2021, by the following vote:   

   Ayes: 

   Noes: 

Absent: 

________________________________ 
President, Board of Directors of 
Borrego Water District 

ATTEST: 

_______________________________ 
Secretary of the Board of Directors of 
Borrego Water District 

33



Exhibit “A” 
Water and Wastewater Service Charges 

[ATTACHED]

34



 
 

 
Water Service Charges 

 
The District provides potable (i.e., treated) water service. The proposed rate structure for the District’s water 
service charges has four customer classes: (1) single-family residential; (2) multiple units; (3) commercial/public 
agency; and (4) irrigation. The rate structure for all customers is composed of two components: (1) a Monthly 
Fixed Charge, and (2) a Commodity Charge, also known as a volumetric charge. All customers are billed 
monthly. If adopted, the proposed rate structure will take effect on October 1, 2021, and will increase each July 1 
thereafter through and including July 1, 2025. 
Monthly Fixed Charge. The Monthly Fixed Charge is established on the basis of the size of the water meter (in 
inches) serving a property. The Monthly Fixed Charge is calculated to recover a portion of the District’s fixed 
costs in providing potable water service, including billing and collections, customer service, meter reading, meter 
maintenance, and a portion of costs associated with providing and meeting system capacity (including treatment, 
distribution, and storage). 
Water Commodity Charge. The potable water Commodity Charge is calculated on the basis of the cost of 
providing potable water. The water Commodity Charge includes supply costs, which are costs related to the 
pumping and production of water to meet customer demand; delivery, which are costs associated with obtaining 
and treating water to ready it for transmission and distribution, as well as the operating and capital costs 
associated with delivering water to all customers at a constant average rate of use; and peaking, which are costs 
associated with providing water during peak demand. The proposed single-family residential Commodity Charge 
consists of three inclining tiers, with tier widths established based on the size of the meter serving the property. 
Tier 1 includes up to 7 units of water and is intended to cover essential indoor water use needs. Tier 2 rates apply 
to water use over 7 units per month, and up to 22 units per month, and is intended to cover reasonable outdoor 
use. Tier 3 covers any water use over tier 2 in any month. The rates within each tier are set to reflect the actual 
cost of service. The remaining customer classes are proposed to pay a uniform rate per unit of water. One unit 
equals one hundred cubic feet (“HCF”) or 748 gallons. 
The tier breakpoints for single-family residential are set forth below. 

 
 
 
 
 

PROPOSED RATES 
The District is proposing to adjust and increase the rates for its water and wastewater service charges for a five-
year period. If approved, the rates will be effective for services provided on and after October 1, 2021 and will 
be increased each July 1 thereafter through and including July 1, 2025, as set forth in the tables below. If approved, 
the proposed rates are the maximum rates that may be imposed by the District. The proposed maximum rates and 
effective dates for water and wastewater customers are set forth in the tables below: 

 

        Table 1 - Tier Revisions 
 

Customer Class & Tiers 
Current Definition 

(hcf) 

Proposed Definition 

(hcf) 

Single Family Residential   

Tier 1 0-7 0-7 

Tier 2 >7 >7-22 

Tier 3 N/A >22 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

35



 
 
 
 

WASTEWATER SERVICE CHARGES 
The District provides sewer collection and treatment within its service areas to both residential and non-
residential customers. The District provides wastewater service to three separate SAs - SA1, SA2, and SA5. All 
wastewater users pay a monthly fixed charge per Equivalent Dwelling Unit (EDU) that varies depending on the 
SA. The District assesses separate charges on wastewater customers in SA2. SA2 customers consist of SA2 EDU 
“Holders” and SA2 EDU “Users”. SA2 EDU Holders are customers that have bought into the wastewater system 
but are not yet connected and contributing flows to the wastewater system. These SA2 EDU Holders have agreed 
to pay certain operating and maintenance costs of the sewer system. SA2 EDU Users, those connected to and 
using the sewer system, pay the sum of both the Holder and User charge. Borrego Springs Resort (BSR) in SA5 
also pays a portion of its charges as a usage charge per unit of water delivered, in addition to a monthly fixed 
charge. 
          

Table 2 - Current and Proposed Water Monthly Fixed Charges ($/Month) 
 

Meter Size Current 
Proposed 

October 2021 

Proposed 

July 2022 

Proposed 

July 2023 

Proposed 

July 2024 

Proposed 

July 2025 

5/8" $44.07 $42.65 $44.79 $47.03 $49.39 $51.86 

3/4" $44.07 $42.65 $44.79 $47.03 $49.39 $51.86 

1" $57.17 $57.35 $60.22 $63.24 $66.41 $69.74 

1.5" $89.91 $94.09 $98.80 $103.74 $108.93 $114.38 

2" $129.19 $138.19 $145.10 $152.36 $159.98 $167.98 

3" $233.97 $277.82 $291.72 $306.31 $321.63 $337.72 

4" $351.85 $483.60 $507.78 $533.17 $559.83 $587.83 

6" $679.27 $976.00 $1,024.80 $1,076.04 $1,129.85 $1,186.35 

 

 

        Table 3 - Current and Proposed Water Commodity Rates ($/hcf) 
 

Customer Class & Tiers Current 
Proposed 

October 2021 

Proposed 

July 2022 

Proposed 

July 2023 

Proposed 

July 2024 

Proposed 

July 2025 

Single Family Residential       

Tier 1 $4.01 $3.59 $3.77 $3.96 $4.16 $4.37 

Tier 2 $4.41 $4.51 $4.74 $4.98 $5.23 $5.50 

Tier 3 N/A $5.20 $5.46 $5.74 $6.03 $6.34 

Multiple Units $4.24 $4.49 $4.72 $4.96 $5.21 $5.48 

Commercial / 

Public Agency 
$4.24 $4.49 $4.72 $4.96 $5.21 $5.48 

Irrigation $4.24 $4.70 $4.94 $5.19 $5.45 $5.73 

 

 

 

  Table 4 - Current and Proposed Wastewater Charges ($/Month/EDU) 
 

Service Area Current 
Proposed 

October 2021 

Proposed 

July 2022 

Proposed 

July 2023 

Proposed 

July 2024 

Proposed 

July 2025 

SA1 $45.37 $47.91 $49.83 $51.83 $53.91 $56.07 

SA2 EDU Holder $28.97 $22.97 $23.89 $24.85 $25.85 $26.89 

SA2 EDU User $23.79 $28.55 $29.69 $30.88 $32.12 $33.41 

SA5 $52.76 $51.51 $53.58 $55.73 $57.96 $60.28 

BSR1 Fixed Charge $28.97 $51.51 $53.58 $55.73 $57.96 $60.28 

BSR Variable Charge 

($/hcf) 
$2.13 NA NA NA NA NA 

 
36



BORREGO WATER DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
JUNE 22, 2021 

AGENDA ITEM II. E 

June 16, 2021 

TO: Board of Directors 

FROM: Geoffrey Poole, General Manager 

SUBJECT:  Pilot Program Regarding Provision of Water Supply for Small Development Projects 
– G Poole

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Pilot Program  

ITEM EXPLANATION:  BWD has been contacted by a handful of potential developers who have 
expressed interest in obtaining water to serve their planned projects. BWD has been informed by 
the developers that the water supply needed for the panned projects is not available on the Borrego 
Springs Water Transfer market at this time. Staff and Legal Counsel have developed the attached 
documents: 

1. POLICY FOR PILOT PROGRAM REGARDING PROVISION OF WATER SUPPLY FOR
SMALL DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS: This document provides all of the Program specifics.

2. BWD Commitment to Secure Water Rights for Small Developments - Acknowledgement Form:
Is submitted with the Application for Service and includes important acknowledgement of the
Program.

3. Will Serve Letter: From BWD and provides a cost estimate and conditions required to receive
water service

4. Water Service Application: Submitted by Applicant

NEXT STEPS: 
1. Implement Program

FISCAL IMPACT 
TBD  

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Pilot Program Documents

37



1 

BORREGO WATER DISTRICT PILOT PROGRAM 

REGARDING PROVISION OF WATER SUPPLY FOR SMALL DEVELOPMENT 

PROJECTS 

WHEREAS, Borrego Water District (BWD) adopted its revised Policy For Water and 

Sewer Service for New Development (“Policy”) on April 27, 2021. 

WHEREAS, Section 3(b) of the Policy states that a “Developer shall be responsible for 

acquiring and conveying to BWD the required BPA [Baseline Production Allocation] needed to 

serve the development with water, in amounts determined by BWD.”   

WHEREAS, since entry of Judgment in the Borrego Springs Subbasin Groundwater 

Adjudication lawsuit (Borrego Water District v. All Persons Who Claim a Right to Extract 

Groundwater, et al, Orange County case no. 37-2020-00005776), concern has been expressed by 

landowners and other persons seeking to build or install new single family homes, other small 

residences, or small commercial and industrial projects, or to expand existing residences or 

projects (“Projects”) that BPA is not readily available for purchase for such Projects from private 

BPA holders within the Borrego Springs Subbasin. 

WHEREAS, while water credits (as referenced in the Judgment) were formerly made 

available by BWD to assist in making water supplies available to such small Projects, under 

Section III(A) of the Judgment, “[a]ll water credits issued by BWD and/or the County pursuant 

to the BWD’s Demand Offset Mitigation Water Credits Policy (revised May 19, 2015) have been 

converted to BPA . . . .” and the BWD’s Demand Offset Mitigation Water Credits Policy has 

been terminated. 

WHEREAS, BWD has determined, subject to the conditions described below, that it is 

willing on a pilot basis to make a limited amount of its current water supply available to provide 

water service to Projects  

WHEREAS, BWD has also determined, subject to the conditions described below, that it 

is willing to make available water supply for new, small projects advanced for the public benefit 

and constructed by public agencies or public utilities (“Small Public Construction”) in need of up 

to one (1) acre-foot of water service (i.e., those Projects that require up to the equivalent of five 

(5) BPA), provided that the proponents of such public projects will become regular BWD

customers and are located within BWD’s service area.

WHEREAS, the pilot program will operate for a limited period of time, as described 

below, with the goal and expectation that a private or other non-BWD sponsored market for the 

acquisition and sale of BPA may develop in the interim. 

38



2 

PILOT PROGRAM CONDITIONS 

1. Subject to the conditions outlined below, beginning on August __, 2021, BWD intends to

make water supply available to: (a) proponents of Projects within the BWD service area with

a water supply demand of up to 1.0 acre foot per year or less of water service and (b)

proponents of Small Public Construction within the BWD service area with a water supply

demand of up to one (1) acre feet or less per year of water service.

2. Applications for such water supply from proponents of eligible Projects or eligible Small

Public Construction will be accepted by BWD from August __, 2021 forward, on a first-

come, first serve basis with the application date given by BWD upon submitting an

application in person at BWD office.    No more than one application will be accepted for

any landowner, Project, Small Public Construction or parcel.  Applications and any

commitment for water service made available under the pilot program are not assignable to

any other land, parcel, Project or Small Public Construction.  Applications and any

commitment for water service may be assigned to a new owner of a Project or Small Public

Construction for which an application has been submitted or a BWD commitment made only

with the advance, express written permission of BWD.

3. For the totality of all Projects and Small Public Construction, collectively, BWD will make

water supply available in a total amount of 6 acre feet of water service under this pilot

program.  Once that total amount is exhausted, no further BWD-owned water supply will be

made available to existing or future applicants, except as may be determined by the BWD

Board of Directors.

4. The pilot program described herein will terminate on the earlier of: (1) Will Serve Letters

being issued by BWD in favor of Projects or Small Public Construction in an amount of 6

acre feet of water service, or (2) December 31, 2023, whichever occurs first.

5. Applicants will be required to submit a BWD Commitment to Secure Water Rights for Small

Developments Acknowledgement Form (Acknowledgement) and New Meter Application

(Application) to BWD substantially in the form of the attached Exhibit B.  Applications must

be completed in full and be submitted along with all required documentation to BWD at the

BWD Office.  The application form may be modified by BWD staff, as reasonably

determined by the BWD General Manager.

6. The Application review fee will be $150, non-refundable.

7. The cost to the Applicant (i.e., the “Water Supply Charges”) of acquiring the BWD water

supply made available under this pilot project will be calculated by multiplying the estimated

water demand of the Project or Small Public Construction shall be $8,725 per acre foot, but

will be subject to change at the discretion of the BWD Board of Directors.

8. Applications will be reviewed in the order received, provided such applications are complete

and the application fee is paid in full.

9. Incomplete applications will be returned to the applicant.  For prioritization purposes,

applications will retain their original filing dates, so long as complete applications are

39



3 

resubmitted to BWD within thirty (30) days after BWD’s mailing out of incomplete 

applications back to the Applicant. 

10. To qualify for BWD water service, Projects and Small Public Construction must include

native plant materials in landscaped areas, and water efficient appliances/equipment.

11. Applicants shall meet all of the following conditions:

a. Applicants shall attest on the Acknowledgement  form that they have searched for and

been unable to locate BPA for sale for a reasonable price by any holders of BPA.

b. The applicant must provide BWD with evidence of County of San Diego approval at

various stages of the Project or Small Public Construction approval process, including

Permit Number, Building Permit and Certificate of Occupancy, see Procedures for

details—whether by written approval or waiver of County requirements by virtue of the

Project’s type or size—or a pending land use application for the Project, if any, or for the

Small Public Construction, if approval is required.  If County of San Diego approval is

not required, the Applicant shall provide evidence to BWD of the status or formal

approval by the regulatory agency, if any, required to approve such Project or Small

Public Construction. See Procedures for details (Exhibit A).

12. If all of the above requirements and conditions are met after BWD’s ministerial review of an

application, and BWD water supply under this pilot program is still available at the time

BWD’s review of an application is complete, BWD will so notify the applicant of all

conditions needed to be met to receive water service.  The following additional steps will

then be required:

a. The applicant will pay a BWD “Will Serve Letter” processing fee of $50

within fifteen (15) calendar days of BWD providing an invoice for such

fee to the applicant.  Failure to timely pay the fee will result in the

application being denied and the applicant losing any prior approval and

any priority it may have established with respect to acquiring BWD water

service.

b. BWD will produce a “Will Serve” Letter indicating the conditions under

which BWD will provide water service to a qualifying Project, which will

include a cost estimate for the Project or Small Public Construction to

obtain water service.

c. Will serve letters will be valid for no more than twenty-four (24) months.

All Projects and Small Public Construction must be completed on the

ground, a certificate of occupancy or equivalent approval issued for the

Project or Small Public Construction, and BWD water service commenced

within such timeframe.

13. Before BWD will commence water service to a Project:

40



4 

a. All applicable BWD fees and charges must be paid, including but not

limited to the BWD Water Supply, meter/service Charge and other costs

identified by BWD or cost set by BWD.

b. For construction purposes only, water service may be temporarily

provided by BWD thru the newly installed meter

c. The applicant will provide BWD with a valid Certificate of Occupancy or

equivalent approval for the Project or Small Public Construction to

establish water service.

d. All other BWD policies, standards and requirements must have been

satisfied in full.

41



5 

EXHIBIT A 

PROCDURES FOR  

NEW WATER SERVICE 

STEP ONE – SUBMIT APPLICATION: Property Owner shall complete and submit to BWD 

for review and comment the New Meter Application and BWD Commitment to Secure Water 

Rights for Small Developments Acknowledgement Form. In addition, a non-refundable 

Processing Fee of $150 is due when completed documents are submitted to BWD. A two to four 

week turn for review and comment by BWD is projected and the actual amount of time spent is 

dependent upon the complexity of the proposed Project or Small Public Construction. 

STEP TWO – BWD REVIEW OF APPLICATION: BWD will review Application and 

respond to Applicant with a Will-Serve Letter (WSL) specifying the conditions that must be met 

and all projected costs to receive water service.   

STEP THREE – WILL SERVE LETTER EXECUTION & PAYMENT OF FEES: 

Applicant accepts BWD WSL conditions, signs letter and pays all fees including $50 WSL fee. 

If after 30 days, the Applicant does not accept Conditions, the Application is withdrawn from 

consideration. Once fees are paid, BWDs commit to provide water service/meter, including 

water supply, is valid for 24 months or extended, for cause, by BWD. Customer will receive 

refund of any charges paid upon termination, provided that BWD construction, design, 

processing and related fees accrued to date will be non-refundable.  

STEP FOUR – WATER SERVICE/METER INSTALLATION: At BWDs discretion, a 

water service (if needed) and meter will be installed. 

STEP FIVE – TEMPORARY WATER SERVICE FOR CONSTRUCTION: Applicant shall 

provide copy of Building Permit and submit a request for Temporary Water Service and pay 

fees, if any. BWD will temporarily turn on water meter during construction for up to 12 months 

total or extended for cause by BWD. The Property Owner shall be billed at the BWD approved 

rates for the proposed project customer class and meter size. 

STEP SIX – WATER SERVICE INITIALIZED: Property Owner completes construction and 

submits Occupancy Permit to BWD when issued by County of San Diego. BWD initiates water 

service and Customer is entered into Billing System on a basis 

42



6 

EXHIBIT B 

BWD Commitment to Secure Water Rights for Small Developments 

Acknowledgement Form 

BWD has a limited pool of water rights, known as BPA.  BWD has decided to make available a 

limited amount of its water supply to small developments within the BWD service area. As part 

of this agreement BWD will apply its water rights such that it can supply water for the 

development described below. 

Property Owner _________________________________ APN___________________________ 

County Permit Application No. ________________________ 

The undersigned acknowledges 

Initial 

I have tried to secure BPA for my development and have been unsuccessful 

I have read the Policy and understand BWD will allocate from its available water 

supply pool the estimated quantity of water needed to serve the proposed Project, 

as determined by BWD following review of the Application. 

Once an Application is accepted and deemed complete, BWD will provide a Will 

Serve Letter outlining the costs and conditions to receive water service as 

described in the Policy. If conditions accepted by Property Owner and all fees 

paid, BWD commitment will remain for up to 24 months 

The available water supply will be allocated on a first come first serve basis, with 

the application date given by BWD upon submitting the Application and 

Acknowledgement forms at the BWD office.  

The cost for BWD to make its water supply available for the proposed 

development and other Conditions will be shown on the Will Serve Letter. 

Signed _________________________________________   Date __________________ 

BWD USE ONLY:  

DATE RECEIVED BY BWD:_______________  By ________________________________ 

43



7 

EXHIBIT C 

Will Serve Letter 

Following review of the Application for the Project or Small Public Construction located at 

______________________ and/or APN number ____________________, the following findings 

have been made and conditions developed for your development to receive water service from 

BWD. 

1. Meter Size: To serve your proposed development a XX sized potable water meter is

needed. This meter size is determined based on estimated flow (including fire sprinklers,

if required) and compared to rated maximum flow rates for BWD meters. The cost of the

Water Meter is $____.

2. New Water Service Cost: A new water service IS  /  IS NOT needed to connect your

proposed meter to the BWD water system. Based on the location of the closest BWD

waterline, the cost for the water service is $________.

3. Water Supply Cost: XX acre feet per year of water supply is needed to for the proposed

development at a cost of $_______ ($8,725/afy), subject to change.

4. Backflow Prevention Requirement: Based on the proposed use and/or operations of your

Development, a backflow prevention device IS  /  IS NOT needed.

5. The total cost estimate for your Project is $_______.

I, _____________________, accept the projected costs and conditions outlined above and 

commit to comply with all of the terms and conditions specified in BWDs PILOT PROGRAM 

REGARDING PROVISION OF WATER SUPPLY FOR SMALL DEVELOPMENT 

PROJECTS. 

__________________________________ Date: ________________________ 

On behalf of BWD 

__________________________________ Date: ________________________ 

44



8 

EXHIBIT D 

New Water Meter Application 

45



NEW METER APPLICATION 

APPLICANT CONTACT 
NAME 

ADDRESS PHONE ❑H ❑W ❑C 

CITY STATE ZIP PHONE ❑H ❑W ❑C 

EMAIL 

PROPERTY INFORMATION 
SERVICE ADDRESS LOT № 

CITY ZIP TRACT/SUBDIVISION 

ASSESSOR'S PARCEL № BUILDING/GRADING PERMIT № PERMIT DATE 

LOT SQ FT № OF BLDGS № OF STORIES № OF DWELLING UNITS 

SITE CONDITIONS 

❑ Private well is planned for the property

❑ Meter locations are paved or will be paved prior to service installation.

METERS TO BE INSTALLED / SERVICE USE 

OWNER/BILLING CONTACT ❑ same as Applicant

NAME 

ADDRESS PHONE ❑H ❑W ❑C 

CITY STATE ZIP PHONE ❑H ❑W ❑C 

EMAIL 

CONTRACTOR CONTACTS 
DOMESTIC PLUMBER / CONTRACTOR NAME 

ADDRESS OFFICE PHONE 

CITY ZIP CELL PHONE 

FIRE SERVICE PLUMBER / CONTRACTOR NAME ❑ same as domestic plumber / contractor 

ADDRESS OFFICE PHONE 

CITY ZIP CELL PHONE 

DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT 

MAX GALLONS PER MINUTE (IF KNOWN) NUMBER OF METERS REQUESTED

SERVICE TYPE 

❑ Single family:  ____Baths 
❑ Multi Family: ____Baths
❑ Pool/Spa: ______ Gallons
❑  Outside Irrigation:  ____ gal/yr.

Max Flow:_____(gpm)
❑ Comm (Specify Type): _______

FIRE SERVICE  ___REQUIRED   ___ REQUESTED

❑ Fire service / hydrant Water service applications which include 

❑ Domestic dual service (water and fire fire service or domestic dual service must 

service on the same meter) have local Fire Marshal complete the 
respective section(s) on PART 2. 

PART 1 – GENERAL INFORMATION 

WASTEWATER SERVICE REQUEST

BWD Wastewater customers are required to obtain a private sewer 
lateral compliance certificate showing that their sewer lateral is free 
of leaks. 

Please check applicable box below. 

❑  I am requesting to be a BWD wastewater customer.
❑  Commercial Food Preparation is planned.❑ Other (Specify Type):_____________ 

❑ Temporary Water Service For 
Construction is Requested.

❑ Meter Upsize or Downsize from
________ to __________

46



NEW METER APPLICATION 
PR

O
PE

R
TY

 

PROJECT ADDRESS CITY ZIP 

ASSESSOR'S PARCEL № TRACT/SUBDIVISION LOT № 

TO BE COMPLETED BY FIRE MARSHAL 

FI
R

E 
H

YD
R

A
N

TS
 ❑ NEW HYDRANTS NOT REQUIRED

❑ REQUIRED:

Number of NEW PUBLIC hydrants ____ 

AND/OR 

Number of NEW PRIVATE hydrants ____ 

❑ RELOCATE: Number of EXISTING PUBLIC 
hydrants to be relocated ____ 

For HYDRANTS, please complete the following OR check the box below: 

A total of gallons per minute supplied by  hydrant(s) flowing simultaneously for a duration 
of minutes. Each individual hydrant shall provide a minimum flow of  gallons per minute. 

Unless otherwise indicated, fire flow is calculated down to at a minimum residual pressure of 20 psi in the water 
main under normal operating design flow conditions. Fire flow is a design factor and is not guaranteed. 

❑ EXISTING FLOW IS ADEQUATE

Remarks 

PR
IV

AT
E 

FI
RE

 S
ER

VI
CE

S 

Commercial, multi-family premises (as approved 

by local fire agency). 

❑ NOT REQUIRED

❑ REQUIRED:
Number of NEW PRIVATE fire services ____

❑ EXISTING PRIVATE FIRE SERVICE adequate

Remarks 

D
O

M
ES

TI
C 

D
U

A
L 

SE
RV

IC
ES

 

Single family premises, multi-family 

premises, condos, and townhomes 

(as approved by local fire agency) 

❑ NOT REQUIRED

❑ REQUIRED:
Number of NEW DUAL SERVICES ____ 

For DOMESTIC DUAL SERVICES please complete the following: 

X =
Sprinkler heads Demand per head, GPM Sprinkler Demand, GPM 

Maximum number of sprinkler heads Flow required for each sprinkler head 

required to operate simultaneously in  to operate (in gallons per minute). 

the largest area to be sprinklered. 

Remarks 

FI
R

E 
M

A
R

SH
A

L 
A

PP
R

O
V

A
L FIRE AGENCY NAME PHONE 

PREPARED BY TITLE 

EMAIL 

SIGNATURE (By signing below, I agree I have reviewed and approved the fire service plan for above address location.)  DATE 

VALID FOR ONE YEAR 

PART 2 – HYDRANT / FIRE SERVICE / DUAL SERVICE REQUIREMENTS 
FIRE MARSHAL: 
Please complete and sign below. If dual service is indicated and approved, please complete the Domestic Dual 

Services section below. If any change to an existing hydrant and/or fire service is required, please indicate required 

changes (i.e. upgrade hydrant body, relocate, or remove) in Remarks Section. For questions about this form, contact 

BWD Business Office at 760-767-5806.

47



NEW METER APPLICATION 

PART 4 – COMMERCIAL WASTEWATER CAPACITY FEE 

BACKFLOW SURVEY 

COMMERCIAL WASTEWATER CAPACITY FEE 

DESCRIBE ANY NON-DOMESTIC WASTEWATER GENERATING 
ACTIVITIES. EXAMPLES: CAR WASHING, REVERSE OSMOSIS 
SYSTEMS, TANK WASHING, Commercial Food Prep, ETC. 

1. 

MAX MONTHLY VOLUME 
ESTIMATE PER ACTIVITY 

TOTAL SQ FT FOR EACH BUILDING OR 
COMMERCIAL TENANT (LIST EACH TYPE) 

1. 

NUMBER OF PEOPLE USING THE FACILITY 
(NOT NEEDED FOR RETAIL OR MEDICAL) 

2. 2. 

3. 3. 

4. 

FOR EATING/DRINKING ESTABLISHMENTS 
SQ FT OF KITCHEN AND DINING NUMBER OF DINING SEATS NUMBER OF BAR SEATS 

5. 

PART 3 – BACKFLOW SURVEY 

YES 
❑ 

NO 
❑ 

1. Do you have a well, either working or abandoned?

YES 
❑ 

NO 
❑ 

2. Will there be a single meter servicing multiple users?

YES 
❑ 

NO 
❑ 

3. Will this service also serve irrigation?

YES 
❑ 

NO 
❑ 

4. Will the HVAC be operated with water?

YES 
❑ 

NO 
❑ 

5. Will you use non-potable liquids or chemicals on the 
property

YES 
❑ 

NO 
❑ 

6. Will you have any equipment, other than residential,
connected to the potable water system? Examples include 
but are not limited to: recirculating
pumps, booster pumps, boilers, hydronic systems, solar
systems, steam generators, or cooling towers?

YES 
❑ 

NO 
❑ 

7. Will you inject chemicals into the fire line?

YES 
❑ 

NO 
❑ 

12. Will there be more than one fire service at this property?

YES 
❑ 

NO 
❑ 

13. Will you need internal protection that requires a backflow 
device?

YES 
❑ 

NO 
❑ 

14. Are you going to install a proper backflow assembly? Have
you verified the appropriate device and location through 
BWD

YES 
❑ 

NO 
❑ 

15. Will there be any non-potable use, such as the use of
recycled water, graywater, or rainwater catchment
systems? Explain:

YES 
❑ 

NO 
❑ 

16. Are you an Industrial, Commercial, or Institutional customer; 
or a residential developer applying for standard service?

YES 
❑ 

NO 
❑ 

17. Will there be a swimming pool, pond, fountain, or a
decorative water feature on site?❑ 

Initials: __________ I will comply with BWD FOG policies 48



NEW METER APPLICATION 

PART 5 – ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 

PROPERTY OWNER / APPLICANT/AUTHORIZED AGENT ASSESSOR'S PARCEL № 

SIGNATURE (By signing below I acknowledge that I have read and agree to each applicable section above.) DATE 

APPLICANT SIGNATURE 

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION COMMENTS: __________________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________________________________________________

49



BORREGO WATER DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
JULY 27, 2021 

AGENDA ITEM II. F 

July 22, 2021 

TO: Board of Directors 

FROM: Geoffrey Poole, General Manager 

SUBJECT: Interim Borrego Springs Subbasin Watermaster Board – D Duncan/K Dice – VERBAL 
A. Update on Board Activities
B. Update on Technical Advisory Committee Activities

50



Item III.A
June 

Financial Reports

51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



Item III.B
June 

Water and Wastewater Operations Report

66



67



68



69



70



71



72



Item III.C
June

Water Production/Use Records:

73



Jul-20 Aug-20 Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 Jan-21 Feb-21 Mar-21 Apr-21 May-21 Jun-21
AF Used 139.2 145.6 160.4 136.0 119.3 103.2 85.5 83.3 78.1 99.9 111.4 127.4

AF Produced 158.1 162.4 174.4 150.7 126.9 111.9 92.8 95.5 88.2 114.2 121.0 140.1
% Non Rev. 12.0% 10.3% 8.1% 9.8% 6.0% 7.8% 7.9% 12.8% 11.5% 12.5% 8.0% 9.1%

Jul-19 Aug-19 Sep-19 Oct-19 Nov-19 Dec-19 Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20
AF Used 159.7 148.7 150.0 153.2 121.7 72.6 86.5 82.0 85.3 83.4 110.4 162.5

AF Produced 168.5 152.9 160.5 159.7 132.1 79.9 92.5 86.0 91.3 91.6 118.5 177.0
% Non Rev. 5.3% 2.8% 6.5% 4.0% 7.8% 9.2% 6.5% 4.7% 6.6% 9.0% 6.8% 8.2%

Jun-21 9.1%
Avg. Past 12 Mos. 9.6%
Avg. Past 24 Mos. 8.0%

WATER PRODUCTION SUMMARY
JUNE 2021

Past 12 months Production vs. Sales

Previous 12 Months Production vs. Sales

Non Revenue Water Summary

158.1
162.4

174.4

150.7

126.9

111.9

92.8 95.5
88.2

114.2
121.0

140.1

168.5

152.9
160.5 159.7

132.1

79.9

92.5
86.0

91.3 91.6

118.5

177.0

0.0

20.0

40.0

60.0

80.0

100.0

120.0

140.0

160.0

180.0

200.0

June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar April May

Ac
re

 F
ee

t

Month

Water Production
2-Year Comparison

AF Produced AF Produced
Current Year Previous Year

74



7/21/21 

Memorandum 

To: Geoff Poole, General Manager 

Re: Oxygen Injection System at MH#46 

From: David Dale, PE – District Engineer 

General Description  

The district owns and operates the Borrego Valley Road Pump Station, 2.8 miles of force main, and 3,500 feet of 

gravity sewer pipelines with 11 manholes along the La Casa del Zorro Resort and Spa (Resort) and Borrego 

Springs Road.  

The Borrego Valley Road Pump Station is located along Borrego Valley Road approximately 0.6 miles north of 

Tilting T Drive. During the summer months, flows average 25,000 gpd.  

During the winter months, flows reach 130,000 gpd. Wastewater is pumped a distance of 

2.8 miles through a 10-inch PVC force main before discharging to gravity at Manhole #46. 

Along the force main, there is one air-vacuum valve located at the intersection of Borrego Valley Road and 

Rango Way. The air-vacuum valve is contained inside a manhole structure. Air-vacuum valves are typically 

installed at high points on pressure pipe and are designed to allow air to enter or escape the system during 

filling and draining operations. No other manholes exist along the force main.  

Hydrogen sulfide gas is produced inside the long force main because of the extended detention time inside the 

pipe and the lack of available oxygen. When the oxygen is used up, the biological processes continue inside the 

pipe and create byproducts of hydrogen sulfide and other toxic gasses.  

The Borrego Water District is undertaking a capital improvement program to address deficiencies in the 

district’s sewer collection system related to the toxic and corrosive gasses.   

On July 13, 2021, the Board of Directors approved expenses in the amount of $423,150.00 to install a new 

gravity sewer main and manholes inside the County right-of-way along Borrego Springs Road from Yaqui Pass 

Road southeasterly, approximately 1,700 linear feet.   

The primary purpose of the project is for a more reliable sewer collection system and reduction of sewer odors 

inside the La Casa Del Zorro Development. The manhole rings and covers will be were upgraded to a polymer 

material because hydrogen sulfide gas corrodes normal steel. The manhole covers are sealed to prevent odor 

migration.  
75



BORREGO WATER DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
JUNE 22, 2021 

AGENDA ITEM IV 

June 16, 2021 

TO: Board of Directors 

FROM: Geoffrey Poole, General Manager 

IV. STAFF REPORTS - VERBAL
A. Administration – Diana Del Bono
B. Engineering- David Dale

a. Report on Oxygenation of Wastewater (ATTACHED)
C. Operations – Alan Asche
D. Wastewater- Roy Martinez
E. General Manager – Geoff Poole

76



The project is now in operation and has substantially reduced the detectible hydrogen sulfide gas in the area of 

the La Casa Del Zorro development (LCDZ) by bypassing and separating the district sewer flow from the LCDZ 

development sewer and keeping the gas trapped inside the sewer system.  

Justification for the Oxygen Injection System 

Although the detectable hydrogen sulfide gas at LCDZ has been substantially reduced by the installation of a new 

12-inch diameter sewer main and new manholes, the toxic gas still exists in high concentrations inside the collection

system.

Operation staff has recently completed a 1.5-hour pilot study showing substantially reduced hydrogen sulfide gas at 

the end of the force main at MH#46. At the beginning of the study, hydrogen sulfide was sampled to be 77 parts per 

million (ppm). At the conclusion of the study, the gas was reduced to 8 ppm. Also, carbon monoxide (CO) was 

reduced from 311 ppm to 8 ppm.  

77



As District Engineer, I am no expert on the biological and chemical processes that produce and/or reduce the 

hydrogen sulfide gas. However, the pilot study was successful in reducing the toxic gasses.  

I recommend moving forward with the project for the following reasons: 

1. Adding an oxygen injection system at manhole #46 has been positively shown to eliminate a big percentage

of the toxic gases at the end of the force main.  This will substantially increase safety for the area and the

district operators.

2. It will create a solid pretreatment process for the wastewater treatment plant by adding oxygen to the

anaerobic bacteria to convert it to aerobic bacteria.

3. District has already expended staff time and approximately $11,000 to procure the system and other

project costs.

Estimated timeline 

To complete the project, staff has been in contact with SDG&E to bring in power to the site. The power is estimated 

to be available September 2021. After the power is ready, the system will be installed, ready and in service in 

approximately 30 days. A fence will be installed around the system to prevent the public from coming into contact 

with the system.  

Budget 

$25,000 (Cash Reserve Funded – approximately $11,000 already expended) 

78


	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



